




Directors’ Report
To the Shareholders of IDLC Securities Limited

Niaz Habib 
Independent Director & Chairman

Dear Shareholders,
It is with immense pleasure that the Board of IDLC Securities Limited  
(IDLC  SL)  presents the  Directors’  Report,  the  audited  financial  
statements  of  the  Company  for  the  year  ended December  
31,  2017 and the Auditor’s Report thereon along with a capital 
market overview, the Company’s performance and other matters 
in compliance with the Companies Act, 1994, and the guidelines 
issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

In Bangladesh, with more than 550 securities including stocks, 
corporate bonds, treasury bonds and mutual funds, the total 
market capitalization is about USD 50.3 billion whereas the equity 
market capitalization is about USD 43.2 billion. Interestingly, the 
top 10 market cap companies represent about 46% of the equity 
market capitalization and all 12 listed MNCs represent about 
33.4% of the equity market capitalization. The country’s equity 
market is still very small in size compared to our neighbors and 
peers. While our market-cap-to-GDP is only about 17.6%, the same 
ratio is much higher for countries like India (103%), the Philippines 
(66%), Thailand (150%), Malaysia (97%) and Indonesia (58%). We 
believe there is ample scope for the market to grow significantly 
over time with the listing of new equities in the coming days. In 
this attractively-placed environment, IDLCSL is positioning itself to 
capture a significant share of this emerging growth, going ahead.

2017 has been an excellent year for Bangladesh stock market with 
24.0% return in 2017 compared to 8.8% of 2016. The year started 
with a positive tone; despite a slight hiccup in last week of January, 
market remained upbeat till first week of April. From Mid-April to 
May, market experienced correction but started to rally again from 
June and peaked in late November with the index reaching 6,337 
points.  In December, the index retrenched by 1.5% and the year 
ended with index at 6,245 points. Throughout 2017, DSEX traded 

between a minimum of 5,083.9 and maximum of 6,336.9. Daily 
average trades in the DSE amounted to Taka 8.7 billion in 2017 
compared with about Taka 4.9 billion in 2016. 

It is my great pleasure to inform you that, this has been a 
fantastic year for your company with organic growth all around.  
IDLC SL made a net profit after tax of Taka 379.5 million, which is 
267.1% higher than Taka 103.4 million reported in 2016. A better 
performance in both brokerage and investment incomes made 
this growth possible. While net brokerage commission income 
rose by 92.3% to Taka 480.5 million, net investment income 
witnessed a 261.6% growth to Taka 255.8 million in 2017 from 
Taka 70.7 million in 2016. 

Time-Weighted Return (TWR) on investment will provide a 
better picture of investment performance than growth in net 
investment income. TWR of proprietary investment was 41.8% 
in 2017 implying an alpha or excess return of 17.8% above the 
market return of 24% for 2017.

Market share of your Company grew to more than 4.0% in 2017 
from 3.5% of previous year and that was achieved based on 
fundamental improvement in performance management, key 
resource retention and substantial rise in our customer base. 
Daily average turnover of the market increased by 77% in 2017, 
whereas the average daily turnover of your Company rose by 
104%.

Despite the various challenges that prevailed in the market, IDLC SL 
came out on top by adding near about 2,370 new accounts in 2017, 
net addition to customer base implied about 12% growth over 2016. 
Currently, IDLC SL has 17,000+ clients including 697 institutional 
and foreign clients. Moreover, the Company serves more than 2,500 
customers as a panel broker of its enlisted merchant banks. This 
year, institution and foreign client base grew significantly by 143% 
and this segment’s contribution to incremental customer base has 
increased from 4% in 2016 to 22% in 2017. This has been a result of 
continuous drive and focus towards all encompassing growth.

IDLC SL has raised its paid-up capital to BDT 2,000 million from 
existing BDT 400 million through issuing new ordinary shares 
at par in September 2017. The purpose of capital raising is to 
strengthen the equity and capital base of the company. 

Operational highlights of 2017

 
FY 

2013
FY 

2014
FY 

2015
FY 

2016
FY 

2017
No. of account at the beginning  8,984 10,756  12,854  13,960  15,352 
Account opened during the year  1,858  3,062  2,514  1,878  2,370 
Account closed during the year  (86)  (964) (1,408)  (486)  (539)
No. of accounts at year end 10,756 12,854 13,960 15,352 17,183 
Growth (year on year) 19.7% 19.5% 8.6% 10.0% 11.9%

Composition of client base: 
Individual 10,406 12,530 13,602 14,933 16,363 
Institution & Foreign  159  199  226  287  697 
NRB  191  125  132  132  123 
Total 10,756 12,854 13,960 15,352 17,183 

Key achievements of 2017

	Substantial increase in market share
	Improvement in cost income ratio
	Widened and enhanced depth of sell-side research coverage
	Augmented retail and strategic sales efforts
	Achievement of significant footing in foreign sales operation
	Restructuring of our operational risk management process
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Financial highlights of 2017

IDLC SL’s total turnover rose to Taka 174.3 billion in 2017, which 
was the highest during the last seven years. This metric grew by 
110.1% from 2016. Net brokerage income grew by 92.8% in 2017 
and rose to Taka 480.5 million, which was also the highest in the 
last seven years. Consequently, net profit before tax and provisions 
witnessed a stellar growth of 200.2% in 2017 to Taka 575.7 million. 
Consequently, net profit after tax grew by 267.1% to Taka 379.5 
million from Taka 103.4 million in 2016. ROA and ROE stood at 
14.8% and 24.6%, respectively, in 2017. 

Human resource development

We believe in performance, meritocracy and equal opportunity 
in every aspects of human resource management. We maintain 
a culture of continuous learning and invest substantially in talent 
management. As part of IDLCSL’s human resource development 
initiatives, a significant  number  of  employees  attended  
different  training programs  during  the  year,  including  both  
managerial development  and  technical  competency. During 
2017, in-house and outsourced training exposure was 3.6 times 
for each employee.  In addition, 17 employee attended high 
quality technical and leadership training abroad.

We believe in high morale and motivated employees all around 
the organization. In this regard, we also arranged high quality 
team building and motivational sessions across the board.

At the end of 2017, the total number of employees stood at 136 
as compared with 127 in 2016. 

Amount in BDT Million 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Total turnover of IDLCSL     44,618     58,598     63,782     82,950   174,274 

Total turnover of IDLCSL Growth (%) 31.3% 8.8% 30.1% 110.1%

Total assets       1,487       1,407       1,558       2,145       4,136 

Total assets Growth (%) -5.4% 10.7% 37.7% 92.8%

Total shareholders equity         890         929       1,025       1,129       3,108 

Total shareholders equity Growth (%) 4.4% 10.3% 10.1% 175.4%

Net brokerage commission income         132         172         203         250         480 

Net brokerage income* Growth (%) 30.7% 18.0% 23.1% 92.3%

Net interest income         104           86           72           53           82 

Net interest income Growth (%) -16.9% -17.1% -26.0% 54.6%

Income from share market investment           31            (6)           52           71         256 

Investment income growth (%) -118.9% -986.3% 36.9% 261.6%

Operating expenses         136         156         181         187         248 

Operating expenses Growth (%) 14.9% 16.1% 3.3% 32.4%

Net profit before tax & provision         131           98         148         192         576 

Net profit before tax & provision Growth (%) -25.3% 50.6% 30.0% 200.2%

Net Profit after Tax           60           39           96         103         379 

Net Profit after Tax Growth (%) -35.1% 147.0% 7.6% 267.1%

Return on total assets* 4.51% 2.69% 6.48% 5.58% 14.79%

Return on equity* 6.96% 4.28% 9.83% 9.60% 24.59%

2017

Yearly turnover of IDLCSL

2013 2014 2015 2016

44,618
58,598 63,782

82,950

174,274

in BDT mn

2017

Return on equity

2013 2014 2015 2016

6.96%
4.28%

9.83% 9.60%

24.59%

2017

Net brokerage commission income

2013 2014 2015 2016

132
172

203
250

480

in BDT mn

* Time weighted ROA & ROE in 2017



from has been adequately disclosed. The financial statements 
prepared by the management of IDLC Securities Limited present 
fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and 
changes in the shareholders’ equity.

Internal control

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored.

Distribution of profits

Considering Company’s investment opportunities, growth 
potentials and comparative cost benefit analysis of paying out 
dividend and overall better tax management, the Board of IDLC 
Securities Limited decided not to distribute any profit  to the 
shareholders of the Company for 2017. 

Appointment of auditors 

In terms of Article 102 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Company shall, at each Annual General Meeting 
(AGM), appoint an auditor or auditors to hold office until the 
next AGM. The shareholders of IDLC Securities Limited at its 11th 
meeting appointed A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the 
auditors for the company for 2017. Accordingly, the auditors of the 
Company, A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, has completed 
their first year of audit of the Company. They are eligible for re-
appointment as Auditors of the Company for the year 2018 and 
they have also offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board 
has recommended A. Qasem & Co. Chartered Accountants, to the 
shareholders at the AGM to be appointed as the auditors of the 
Company for the year 2018 at an existing remuneration of Taka 
100,000 (Taka One Hundred Thousand only).

Going concern
There is no significant doubt on IDLC Securities Limited’s ability 
to continue as a going concern.

Appreciation

I would like to thank the Board and colleagues for their continued 
support and unstinted cooperation and on their behalf express 
my sincere appreciation to the entire IDLC Securities team. I  
would  like  to  acknowledge  the  exceptional  efforts  of  our 
employees who worked hand-in-hand to meet the challenges 
of a difficult year. They were called upon to embrace major 
difficulties, at the same time maintaining the highest standards 
of service to our clients.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank our loyal customers 
and honorable shareholders (specially IDLC Finance Limited, our 
parent company) for their trust reposed on us. The members 
of the Board would also like to thank the Bangladesh Securities 
and Exchange Commission, the Dhaka and Chittagong stock 
exchanges and the Central Depository Bangladesh Limited, who 
have remained as partners in the growth of our Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-

Niaz Habib 
Chairman 
IDLC Securities Limited

Top-five risks impacting our business and key mitigation 
strategies

Major HR initiatives in 2017

	 Consolidation of performance appraisal system for all the 
employees

	 Enhanced focus on in-house training programs
	 Introduction of training calendar as a proactive approach 

for talent developments

2017

Number of Employees

2013 2014 2015 2016

73

115

138
127

136

Risk Mitigation Strategy

Political uncertainty
Balancing between scale of the business 
and uncertainty

Regulatory risk
Improve internal control, training and 
monitoring employeesfor enhancing 
complaince

Investment risk
Prudent investment exposure 
management

Retention of skilled 
human resources

Performance and motivation management

Shift in technology

We are closely monitoring technological 
changes to adopt the appropriate 
technology and remain contemporary 
with regards to the prevailing standards

Outlook for 2018

At IDLC SL, we intend to:

	 Continue capturing market share
	 Continue focus on foreign and premium brokerage segments
	 Enhance capacity of sell side research
	 Continue to focus on capacity building of dealers
	 Embrace new technology conducive for brokerage business
	 Increase the number of NRB clients

Books of accounts

At IDLC Securities, proper books of accounts have been 
maintained. The appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements 
and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment. International Accounting Standards (IAS)/ Bangladesh 
Accounting Standards (BAS)/ International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS)/ Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards 
(BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in the 
preparation of the financial statements and any departure there-
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Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of IDLC Securities Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDLC Securities Limited, which comprise the statement of financial position as 
at 31 December 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act, 1994 and applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of  IDLC Securities Limited as at 
31 December 2017, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards and other applicable laws and regualtions.

We also report that:	

(i)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;	

(ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our 
examination of those books;

(iii)	 The Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement 
with the books of account and returns; and 

(iv)	 The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Dated, Dhaka
11 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants



Particulars Note
31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Taka  Taka 

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  35,535,541  27,978,666 
Intangible asset 5  482,658  1,566,223 
Investment in Stock Exchanges 6  18,676,000  18,676,000 
Deferred tax assets 7  16,060,943  12,856,417 

 70,755,142  61,077,306 

Current Assets
Advances, deposits and prepayment 8  17,771,694  21,594,749 
Investment in marketable securities 9  2,365,849,893  885,524,029 
Accounts receivable 10  34,554,226  117,954,061 
Short term loan to IDLC Investments Limited 11  200,000,000  100,000,000 
Margin loan to clients 12  85,310,055  41,461,623 
Cash and cash equivalents 13  1,361,733,629  917,532,095 

 4,065,219,497  2,084,066,557 

Total Assets  4,135,974,639  2,145,143,864 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital 14  2,000,000,000  400,000,000 
Retained earnings 15  1,108,124,097  728,650,188 

 3,108,124,097  1,128,650,188 
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 16  669,743,510  764,417,975 
Short term loan 17  170,000,000  170,000,000 
Liabilities for expenses 18  47,843,563  23,186,932 
Provision for income tax 19  140,263,468  58,888,769 

 1,027,850,541  1,016,493,676 

Total equity and liabilities  4,135,974,639  2,145,143,864 

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

IDLC Securities Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
11 February, 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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Particulars Note
2017 2016
Taka  Taka 

Operating income
Brokerage commission income 20  542,457,255  283,608,543 
Brokerage commission expense 21  (61,975,600)  (33,790,832)

Net brokerage commission income (a)  480,481,655  249,817,711 
Interest income 22  92,092,622  60,329,508 
Interest expense 23  (10,162,407)  (7,348,043)

Net interest income (b)  81,930,215  52,981,465 
Net investment income (c ) 24  255,817,500  70,747,437 
Other operating income (d) 25  3,414,862  4,159,245 

Total Operating Income (A=a+b+c+d)  821,644,232  377,705,858 

Operating Expenses
Salaries & allowances 26  151,203,907  106,230,160 
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. 27  47,912,751  51,736,776 
Legal expenses 28  3,492,603  2,276,233 
Postage, stamp, telecommunication, etc. 29  6,901,887  4,055,557 
Stationery, printing, advertisements, etc. 30  10,159,861  5,704,465 
Directors' fee & meeting expenses 31  278,818  171,398 
Audit fee  115,000  86,250 
Depreciation and amortization 4&5  10,118,568  8,136,360 
Other expenses 32  17,349,430  8,555,993 

Total Operating Expenses (B)  247,532,824  186,953,192 
Operating Profit (A-B)  574,111,408  190,752,666 
Non-operating Income 33  1,549,481  1,021,012 
Profit before Provisions and Tax  575,660,889  191,773,678 
Profit before Provision for Income Tax  575,660,889  191,773,678 
Provision for Income Tax  196,186,981  88,395,352 

Current tax 19  199,391,506  84,243,810 
Deferred tax expense/(income) 7  (3,204,525)  4,151,542 

Net profit  379,473,908  103,378,327 
Other comprehensive income  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income  379,473,908  103,378,327 

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

IDLC Securities Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
11 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 



Particulars
2017 2016
Taka  Taka 

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit during the year  379,473,908  103,378,327 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortization  10,118,568  8,136,360 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (523,452)  (186,534)
(Increase)/decrease in deferred tax asset  (3,204,525)  4,151,542 
Cash generated from operating activities before changes in working capital:  6,390,590  12,101,368 

Changes in workings capital:
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable  83,399,835  (49,314,749)
(Increase)/decrease in margin loan to clients  (43,848,432)  (7,721,351)
Decrease/(increase) in advances, deposits and prepayments  3,823,055  4,162,539 
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable  (94,674,465)  410,839,511 
(Decrease)/increase in provision for expenses  24,656,631  (44,884)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for current tax  81,374,700  8,384,661 
Net cash flow from operating activities  440,595,822  481,785,422 

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  (16,068,424)  (15,187,354)
Investment in shares/securities  (1,480,325,864)  (448,215,922)
(Disbursement)/Reimbursement of Short term loan to IDLC Investments Limited  (100,000,000)  (100,000,000)
Net cash (used in)/ flow from investing activities  (1,596,394,288)  (563,403,276)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Receipt of short term loan - Standard Chartered Bank  -    170,000,000 
(Repayment)/Reciept of short term loan - IDLC Finance Limited  -    (105,000,000)
Share Capital  1,600,000,000  -   
Net cash flow from in financing activities  1,600,000,000  65,000,000 

D. Net surplus/(deficit) in cash & cash equivalents for the year (A+B+C)  444,201,534  (16,617,852)
E. Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  917,532,095  934,149,947 
F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  1,361,733,629  917,532,095 

*Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash in hand  100,000  100,000 
Cash at bank  735,133,629  727,791,418 
Fixed deposits  626,500,000  189,640,677 

 1,361,733,629  917,532,095 

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

IDLC Securities Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
11 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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Particulars Share Capital Retained  
Earnings

Total 
Equity

Balance as on 01 January 2016  400,000,000  625,271,861  1,025,271,861 
Addition during the year  -    103,378,327  103,378,327 
Balance as on 31 December 2016  400,000,000 728,650,189  1,128,650,188 

Balance as on 01 January 2017  400,000,000  728,650,189  1,128,650,188 
Addition during the year  1,600,000,000  379,473,909  1,979,473,909 
Balance as on 31 December 2017 2,000,000,000 1,108,124,098 3,108,124,098 

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

IDLC Securities Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
11 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 



IDLC Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

1	 Company and its activities

1.1	 Legal status of the Company	

	 IDLC Securities Limited (IDLCSL) was incorporated with the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms (RJSC) vide 
registration no.  C-61319 (3328)/06 with effect from 19 April 2006 as a private limited company limited by shares having its 
registered office at DR Tower (4th Floor), 65/2/2, Bir Protik Gazi Golam Dostogir Road, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000 under the 
Companies Act, 1994. The Company is a Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) holder of both Dhaka Stock Exchange 
Limited (058) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (119). The company commenced its business operations on 18 
September 2006 as a wholly owned subsidiary of IDLC Finance Limited.

1.2	 Nature of business

	 The principal activities of IDLC Securities Limited are to act as a member of stock exchanges, the central depository system 
(CDS) companies  and to carry on the business of broker, jobbers or dealers in stocks, shares, securities, bonds, debentures. 
The Company is also authorized to buy, sell,  hold or otherwise acquire or invest the capital of the Company in shares, stocks 
and fixed income securities, etc. The company has ten (10) branches in Bangladesh located at Purana Paltan , Chittagong, 
Dhanmondi, Mohakhali (DOHS), Gulshan, Narayanganj, Uttara, Gazipur, Khatunganj, and Sylhet. IDLC Securities Limited 
possesses following licenses from regulatory authorities:

Name of Institutions License No: Nature of Business

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 3.1/DSE/58/2006/130 Stock Broker Business with DSE

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 3.1/DSE/58/2008/233 Stock Dealer Business with DSE

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 3.2/CSE/119/2006/135 Stock Broker Business with CSE

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) 3.2/CSE/119/2006/176 Stock Dealer Business with CSE

Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) CDBL- DP 229 Depository functions

2	 Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the 
Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

2.2	 Other regulatory compliance

	 As required, IDLC Securities Limited also complies with the applicable provisions of the following major laws/ statutes: 

	 -Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987;

	 -Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993;

	 -Securities and Exchange Commission (Stock-Dealer, Stock-Broker and Authorized Representatives) Rules, 2000; and

	 -The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;

	 -The Income Tax Rules, 1984;

	 -Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881;

	 Other applicable laws and regulations.

2.3	 Basis of measurement

	 These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention in accordance 
with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).
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2.4	 Components of financial statements

	 -Statement of Financial Position

	 -Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

	 -Statement of Changes in Equity

	 -Statement of Cash Flows

	 -Notes to the Financial Statements

2.5	 Functional and presentational currency

	 These financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) which is the functional currency of the company. The 
amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest integer.

2.6	 Use of estimates and judgments

	 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. It also requires disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the year 
end. 

	 Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized in the financial statements in line with Bangladesh Accounting Standard 
(BAS) 37: “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” when - the Company has a legal or constructive obligation 
as a result of past event; and

	 i. It is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.	

	 ii. A reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation.

	 The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

	 However, the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revision is recognized in the 
period in which the estimates are revised.

2.7	 Statement of cash flows

	 Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 7: "Statement of Cash Flows" 
and the cash flows from operating activities are presented under the indirect method as prescribed by the Securities and 
Exchange Rules, 1987.

2.8	 Going concern

	 The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors 
continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The current credit facilities and adequate 
resources of the company provide sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of its existing businesses and operations.

2.9	 Recognition and measurement of financial assets

	 In accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 39, financial assets may be recognized at fair value, with gain and 
losses taken to the income statement in net investment income. A financial asset or financial liability is classified as held for 
trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term.

2.10	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 
enterprise and in accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS)-18 “Revenue Recognition”: 

	 a. Brokerage commission

	 Brokerage commission is recognized as income when selling or buying order executed.

	 b. Interest income from margin loan

	 Interest Income from margin loan is recognized on accrual basis. Such income is calculated on daily margin loan balance of 
the respective parties. Income is recognized on monthly basis and applied to the customers' account on quarterly basis.

	 c. Dividend income and gain/(loss) on sale of marketable securities

	 Dividend income is recognized when right to receive or payment is established whereas profit or loss arising from the sale of 
securities is accounted for only when shares are sold in the market and profit is realized or loss is incurred.



2.11	 Investment in stock exchanges for membership

	 In accordance with section 8 of the Exchanges Demutualization Act, 2013, both stock exchange memberships have been 
converted into shares through the issuance of two completely de-linked assets to the former members in the Exchange, 
namely (a) fully paid-up shares and (b) trading right. Exchanges shall have the authority to issue Trading Right Entitlement 
Certificate (TREC), as per the Exchanges Demutualization Act, 2013 and as outlined in the scheme, to provide the right to 
trade any securities enlisted in Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) to eligible brokers and 
dealers. Such TRECs will be totally separated from the ownership of the Exchange as there is no obligation for TREC holders 
to be or remain shareholders of the exchange.

2.12	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at bank and fixed deposits which are held and are available for use by 
the Company without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of change in the value of the above items.

3.	 Significant accounting policies

3.1	 Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

	 All Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation as per BAS-16 " Property, Plant and 
Equipment". The cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the 
assets to its working condition for its intended use.	

3.1.1	 Depreciation and Amortization 

	 Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged  using the straight-
line method on the acquisition cost of PPE and such cost is written off over the estimated useful lives of assets, in accordance 
with BAS 16. Depreciation for full month is charged on additions irrespective of date when the related assets are put into use 
and no depreciation is charged for the month of disposal. The rates of depreciation used to write off the amount of assets are 
as follows:

	

Category of assets Rate of depreciation

Computer peripherals 20.00%  p.a.

Office equipment                           20.00% p.a.

Electrical equipment 20.00% p.a.

Motor vehicles 25.00% p.a.

Office decoration 20.00% p.a.

Furniture & fixtures 12.50% p.a.

Telephone and telex 33.33% p.a.

Curtain & carpet 33.33% p.a.

3.1.2.	 Intangible Assets and Amortization of Intangible assets

	 The main item includes in intangible asset is computer software. Intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future 
economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably in accordance with BAS 38: "Intangible Assets". Accordingly, these assets are stated in the Statement of Financial 
Position at cost less accumulated amortization. Intangible asset is amortized over a period of three (03) years. 

3.2	 Provision for tax

3.2.1.	 Current tax

	 Provision for current tax is made on the basis of the profit for the year as adjusted for taxation purpose in accordance with the 
provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and amendments made thereto from time to time.

3.2.2.	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred Tax is calculated as per Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS)-12 “Income Taxes”. Deferred Tax is recognized on 
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred Tax 
liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred Tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences. Deferred Tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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3.3.	 Provision for expenses

	 Provision for expenses is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and reliable estimate of 
the amount can be made.

3.4.	 Provision for diminution in value of investments

	 Investment in quoted shares and un-quoted shares are revalued at the year end at market price and as per book value of last 
audited statement of financial position. Provision should be made for any loss arising from diminution in value of investment. 
As such the company measures and recognizes investment in quoted and unquoted shares at cost if the year end market 
value (for quoted shares) and book value (for quoted shares) are higher than the cost except investment in mutual fund. 
Incase of mutual fund Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's (BSEC) directive no. SEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/172 
dated 30 June 2015 has been followed.

3.5.	 Employee benefits

	 IDLC Securities Limited maintains  defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees.  Employee provident fund 
and gratuity plan are considered as defined benefit plan as it meets the recognition criteria. The company's obligation is  to 
provide the agreed benefits to employees as per condition of the fund. The eligibility is determined according to the terms 
and conditions set in the service rules of the company. The provident fund is recognized under Income Tax Ordinance 1984.

3.6.	 Related party disclosure

	 As per Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 24: "Related Party Disclosures", parties are considered to be related if one of 
the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis at 
commercial rates with its related parties. Related party disclosures have been given in note 35.

3.7.	 Events after the reporting date

	 Events after the reporting date that provides additional information about company's financial position at the reporting 
date are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting date that are material but not adjusting event are 
discussed in the notes.

3.8.	 Application of Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs):

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirement of BAS/BFRS as adopted by The Institute of  
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and applicable in Bangladesh. IDLC-SL applied following BAS and BFRS:

Name of the BAS BAS No. Status

Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied

Statements of Cash Flow 7 Applied

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 8 Applied

Events after the Balance Sheet Period 10 Applied

Income Taxes 12 Applied

Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied

Revenue 18 Applied

Employee Benefits 19 Applied

Borrowing Costs 23 Applied

Related Party Disclosures 24 Applied

Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 Applied

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Applied

Intangible Assets 38 Applied

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 39 Not Applied

Name of the BFRS BFRS No Status

Financial Instruments: Disclosures 7 Applied



31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

4 Property, plant and equipment
A. Cost :

Opening balance  121,869,099  117,441,689 

Addition during the year  16,680,284  17,597,459 

 138,549,384  135,039,148 

Disposal for the year  (4,478,073)  (13,170,051)

 134,071,311  121,869,097 

B. Accumulated depreciation:

Opening balance  93,890,435  97,284,281 

Charged for the year  9,035,001  6,975,430 

 102,925,436  104,259,711 

Disposal for the year  (4,389,666)  (10,369,280)

 98,535,770  93,890,431 

C. Written down Value (A-B)  35,535,541  27,978,666 

A schedule of property, plant and equipment is given in Annexure - A. 

 5 Intangible asset
A. Cost:

Opening balance  5,993,705  5,416,505 

Addition during the year  -    577,200 

 5,993,705  5,993,705 

B. Accumulated amortization

Opening balance  4,427,481  3,266,552 

Amortization for the year  1,083,566  1,160,930 

 5,511,048  4,427,482 

C. Written down value (A-B)  482,658  1,566,223 

6 Investment in Stock Exchanges
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) (Note: 6.1)  15,225,000  15,225,000 

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) (Note: 6.2)  3,451,000  3,451,000 

 18,676,000  18,676,000 

6.1 Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE)

Purchase of DSE membership from Mehnaz Mannan & Co.  15,000,000  15,000,000 

Share transfer stamp duty  225,000  225,000 

 15,225,000  15,225,000 

6.2 Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE)

Purchase of CSE membership from Technohaven Securities Limited  3,400,000  3,400,000 

Share transfer stamp duty  51,000  51,000 

 3,451,000  3,451,000 

 18,676,000  18,676,000 

This represents the amount paid for purchasing membership of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) and Chittagong Stock 
Exchange Limited (CSE) including stamp duty for transferring shares.
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Stock Exchange Types of Shares Number of shares Face value (Taka)

Dhaka Stock Exchange
Floated (40%)  2,886,042  28,860,420 

Blocked (60%)  4,329,064  43,290,640 

 7,215,106  72,151,060 

Stock Exchange Types of Shares Number of shares Face value (Taka)

Chittagong Stock Exchange
Floated (40%)  1,714,932  17,149,320 

Blocked (60%)  2,572,398  25,723,980 

 4,287,330  42,873,300 

As per the provision of the Exchanges Demutualization Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commission (BSEC) approved Demutualization Scheme, DSE allotted total 7,215,106 ordinary shares at face value 
of Tk.10.00 each and CSE allotted total 4,287,330 ordinary shares at face value of Tk.10.00 each against the membership, 
respectively.

7 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax asset for 2017 is arrived at as follows:

Carrying Amount  Tax base  Taxable Temporary 
Difference  Taka  Taka 

As on 31 December 2017

Assets:

Fixed assets net of depreciation  36,018,198  54,834,699  18,816,500 

Liabilities:

Provision for gratuity  27,071,908  -    27,071,908 

Total  45,888,407 

Applicable tax rate 35%

Deferred tax assets as on 31 December 2017  16,060,943 

Deferred tax assets as on 31 December 2016  12,856,417 

Deferred tax income accounted for 2017  3,204,525 

Deferred tax asset for 2016 is arrived at as follows:

As on 31 December 2016

Assets:

Fixed assets net of depreciation  29,544,889  49,231,766  19,686,877 

Liabilities:

Provision for gratuity  17,045,744  -    17,045,744 

Total  36,732,621 

Applicable tax rate 35%

Deferred tax assets as on 31 December 2016  12,856,417 

Deferred tax assets as on 31 December 2015  17,007,960 

Deferred tax expense accounted for 2016  (4,151,542)

Deferred tax has been calculated based on deductible taxable temporary difference arising due to difference in the carrying 
amount of the liabilities and its tax base in accordance with the provision of Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 12: "Income 
Taxes".



31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

8 Advances, deposits and prepayment
Advances and prepayments (Note: 8.1)  17,483,694  21,306,749 

Security deposit (Note: 8.2)  288,000  288,000 

 17,771,694  21,594,749 

8.1 Advances and prepayments

Advances (Note: 8.1.1)  2,402,405  2,299,184 

Prepayments (Note: 8.1.2)  15,081,289  19,007,565 

 17,483,694  21,306,749 

8.1.1 Advances

Advance to Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited  850,000  850,000 

Advance for expenses  90,000  116,000 

Advances for services /to suppliers  1,233,040  1,105,427 

Advances to Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited  100,000  100,000 

Advance to Bloomberg Finance L.P.  129,365  127,757 

 2,402,405  2,299,184 

8.1.2 Prepayments

Rent (Note: 8.1.2.1)  14,436,958  18,440,485 

Insurance premium (Note: 8.1.2.2)  644,331  567,080 

 15,081,289  19,007,565 

8.1.2.1 Rent

Head office  8,678,772  11,571,696 

Agrabad branch  3,039,842  3,741,344 

Sylhet branch  400,000  -   

Narayanganj branch  558,344  1,167,445 

Dhanmondi branch  500,000  700,000 

Gazipur branch  1,260,000  1,260,000 

 14,436,958  18,440,485 

8.1.2.2 Insurance premium

Group life  410,720  365,160 

Hospitalization  51,285  52,971 

Office insurance  85,352  96,480 

Motor vehicles  96,974  52,469 

 644,331  567,080 

8.2 Security deposit 

Security deposit at CDBL  100,000  100,000 

Security deposit at CSE  25,000  25,000 

Security deposit at Dhaka Telephone Company  5,000  5,000 

Security deposit to Brig. Gen. Gyasuddin A Chowdhury  150,000  150,000 

Security deposit to Nabarun Agencies  8,000  8,000 

 288,000  288,000 
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31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

9 Investment in marketable securities 
Investment in shares available for sale (Note: 9.1.1)  2,355,509,893  802,658,399 

Investment in Initial Public Offering (IPO) (Note: 9.1.2)  -    20,000,000 

Investment in non-tradeable shares (Note: 9.2)  10,340,000  62,865,630 

 2,365,849,893  885,524,029 

9.1.1 Investment in shares available for sale

The investments in shares are categories as financial assets held for trading as per BAS 39. The details of the investments 
are as follows:

Business Segments
 Total Cost of 
Shares as on 

31.12.2017 (Taka) 

 Market price as 
on 31.12.2017 

(Taka) 

Bank  922,486,361  1,103,043,715 

Pharmaceuticals & Chemicals  766,825,355  773,530,563 

Engineering  127,046  967,315 

Food & Allied  103,388,252  119,984,637 

Financial Institutions  30,340,900  33,069,624 

Telecommunication  530,401,052  598,542,164 

Mutual Funds  1,940,927  2,040,555 

 2,355,509,893  2,631,178,573 

All investment in marketable securities are valued on aggregate portfolio basis, at the lower of cost and market value, at 
the reporting date.

On the reporting date, the aggregate portfolio value at cost price was BDT 2,355,509,893 and at market price was BDT 
2,631,178,573, therefore if the reporting entity was recognized the unrealized gain on portfolio then it would recognize BDT 
275,668,679 in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. But as per FID circular No. 08 dated August 
3, 2002 of Bangladesh Bank (The Central Bank), IDLC Finance Limited, the Parent Company of reporting entity, recognizes 
its aggregate portfolio on cost value and no unrealized gain is recognized. So, the reporting entity as a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the IDLC Finance Limited, follows the similar accounting policy for recognizing the investment in securities 
listed in both stock exchanges.

9.1.2 Investment in Initial Public Offering (IPO)  -    20,000,000 

9.2 Investment in non-tradeable shares

Energypac Power Generation Limited(235,000 shares @ Taka 44 each)  10,340,000  10,340,000 
Runner Automobiles Limited (1,165,000 shares @ Taka 45 each)  -    52,425,000 
Fortune Shoes Limited (10,063 shares @ Taka 10 each)  -    100,630 

 10,340,000  62,865,630 

10 Accounts receivable

Receivable from DSE (Note: 10.1)  20,150,960  19,921,116 
Receivable from CSE (Note: 10.2)  214,546  4,155,788 
Receivable from clients (broker) (Note: 10.3)  9,234,491  84,925,309 
Receivable from sale of shares (Note: 10.4)  207,564  1,075,161 
Receivable from managed cap investment  -    75,227 
Interest receivable (Note: 10.5)  1,255,875  4,245,709 
Other receivable  3,490,790  3,555,751 

 34,554,226  117,954,061 



10.1 Receivable from DSE

Sale for broker  20,150,960  18,369,568 

Sale for dealer  -    1,551,548 

 20,150,960  19,921,116 

This balance has been resulted from sale of shares through Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE).  

10.2 Receivable from CSE  214,546  4,155,788 

This balance has been resulted from sale of shares through Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE). 

10.3 Receivable from clients (brokers)  9,234,491  84,925,309 

10.4 Receivable from sale of shares  207,564  1,075,161 

This balance has been resulted from the sale of marketable securities during the year.

10.5 Interest receivable  1,255,875  4,245,709 

The interest has been accrued from Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR).

11 Short term loan to IDLC Investments Limited 200,000,000 100,000,000
The amount represents due from IDLC Investments Limited as the inter-company lending.

12 Margin loan to clients

Opening balance  41,461,623  33,740,272 
Addition during the year  43,848,432  7,721,351 

 85,310,055  41,461,623 

13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand  100,000  100,000 

Cash at bank (Note: 13.1)  735,133,629  727,791,417 

Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR) (Note: 13.2)  626,500,000  189,640,677 

 1,361,733,629  917,532,095 

13.1 Cash at bank 

Name of the Bank Branch Type A/C No.

Standard Chartered Bank Dhaka Main SND 02-3066347-03  480,000  225,274 
Standard Chartered Bank Dhaka Main SND 02-3066347-01  1,000  -   
Standard Chartered Bank Dhaka Main CD 01-3066347-01  (8,281,246)  9,487,700 
Standard Chartered Bank Dhaka Main CD 01-3066347-02  180,584,132  99,164,652 
NCC Bank NCC Bank Bhaban SND 0103-0325000302  443,658,854  -   
NCC Bank NCC Bank Bhaban SND 0103-0325000311  1,750,838  -   
Standard Chartered Bank Dhaka Main CD 01-3066347-05  1,483,285  20,716,194 
One Bank Limited Principal SND 001-5025642009  38,955,934  284,669,209 
One Bank Limited (IPO) Principal SND 001-3000000944  3,449,109  183,593,432 
Brac Bank Limited Graphics Building SND 1513101749870001  38,049,436  92,607,474 
Eastern Bank Limited Motijheel SND 102.134.49357  777,653  772,339 
Commercial Bank of Ceylon 
PLC

Dhaka SND 2802005291  30,752,528  34,213,076 

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited Sylhet SND 121-120-2668  3,472,106  2,342,067 
 735,133,629  727,791,417 

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 
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13.2 Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR)

Name of the Bank Branch FDR No.

Trust Bank Limited Dilkusha 0017-0330029778  2,500,000  2,678,500 
Standard Chartered Bank Gulshan 93066347051*  7,000,000  7,000,000 
Standard Chartered Bank Gulshan 93066347052*  17,000,000  17,000,000 
IDLC Finance Limited Gulshan 10552206364301  600,000,000  -   
Farmers Bank Limited Motijheel 0124300071994  -    76,049,016 
Farmers Bank Limited Imamganj 0124300071992  -    86,913,161 

 626,500,000  189,640,677 

*FDR #93066347051 & 93066347052 kept under lien with Standard Chartered Bank as security for Overdraft and Short 
term loan respectively.

14 Share capital

Authorised capital  2,000,000,000  2,000,000,000 
20,000,000 shares of Taka 100 each

Issued, subscribed & paid up capital :  2,000,000,000  400,000,000 

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of Taka 2,000,000,000 is divided into 20,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 100 
each. Details are as follows:

IDLC Finance Limited
19,999,992 shares of Tk. 100 each fully paid up  1,999,999,200  399,999,200 
Mr. Asif Saad Bin Shams
8 shares of Tk. 100 each fully paid up  800  800 

 2,000,000,000  400,000,000 

IDLC Securities Limited has raised its paid-up capital at BDT 2,000 million from existing BDT 400 million through issuing 
new ordinary shares at par in September 2017. The purpose of capital raising is to strengthen the equity and capital base 
of the company.

15 Retained earnings
Opening balance  728,650,188  625,271,861 

Net profit for the year  379,473,908  103,378,327 

 1,108,124,097  728,650,188 

16 Accounts payable

Payable to clients (Note: 16.1)  584,368,788  522,273,945 
Public issue application money (Note: 16.2)  340,000  182,070,000 
Payable to DSE (Note: 16.3)  40,120,552  34,204,872 
Payable to CSE (Note: 16.4)  8,669,490  853,494 
Deferred liability - employees' gratuity (Note: 16.5)  27,071,908  17,045,744 
Other payable (Note: 16.6)  9,172,772  7,969,920 

 669,743,510  764,417,975 

16.1 Payable to clients

Broker  584,161,224  521,198,792 

Dealer  207,564  1,075,153 

 584,368,788  522,273,945 

This balance represents the clients' sale proceeds of shares and deposits against share purchase which is currently lying 
with the company's bank A/C.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 



16.2 Public issue application money  340,000  182,070,000 

16.3 Payable to DSE

Purchase for broker  40,120,552  34,152,552 

Purchase for dealer  -    52,320 

 40,120,552  34,204,872 

This balance has been resulted from purchase of shares through Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE).

16.4 Payable to CSE

Purchase for broker  8,669,490  73,646 

Purchase for dealer  -    779,848 

 8,669,490  853,494 

This balance has been resulted from purchase of shares through Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).  

16.5 Deferred liability - employees' gratuity

Opening balance  17,045,744  13,200,215 

Addition during the year  10,026,164  5,259,046 

 27,071,908  18,459,261 

Payment during the year  -    (1,413,517)

 27,071,908  17,045,744 

16.6 Other payable

Payable to CDBL  737,953  772,615 

Payable to Investec Securities Proprietary Limited  399,763  202,673 

Payable to AT Capital Partners (BD) Limited  309,097  50,032 

Payable to Exotix Partners LLP  1,345,037  9,318 

Payable to welfare fund  357,617  1,743,034 

Interest payable  677,014  429,722 

Miscellaneous payable  5,346,291  4,762,526 

 9,172,772  7,969,920 

17 Short term loan 
Short term loan - Standard Chartered Bank  170,000,000  170,000,000 

 170,000,000  170,000,000 

Standard Chartered Bank approved an overdraft facility and a short term loan facility in favor of IDLC Securities Limited for 
amount of Taka 70,000,000 at 10.00% per annum interest rate and Taka 170,000,000 at 9.50%  per annum interest rate for 30 
days tenure  respectively vide sanction letter ref# CDU/KSR/10350523, dated 23 October 2014. For security purpose, IDLC 
Securities Limited has to maintain cash security for Taka 7,000,000 for overdraft facility and FDR amount of Taka 17,000,000 
kept under lien with SCB for the short term loan. Standard Chartered Bank may revises the interest rate time to time at the 
discretion of the bank as per the clause no. 03 of the sanction letter.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 
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18 Liabilities for expenses

Audit fee  115,000  86,250 
Legal & professional fee  708,398  804,428 
Office rent  1,152,042  1,288,804 
Utilities  283,665  256,664 
Office maintenance  554,658  720,986 
Salaries & allowances  45,000,000  20,000,000 
Postage and Courier  25,800  25,800 
Telephone expenses  4,000  4,000 

 47,843,563  23,186,932 

19 Provision for income tax

 Opening balance  58,888,769  50,504,107 
 Provision during the year  199,391,506  84,243,811 

 258,280,275  134,747,918 

 Paid during the year  17,179,248  23,368,463 
 Tax deducted at source   (Note: 19.1)  100,837,558  52,490,686 

 (118,016,806)  (75,859,149)
 140,263,468  58,888,769 

19.1  Tax deducted at source 

The amount has been deducted by Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE) & Chittagong Stock exchange Limited (CSE) 
from the transaction amount as per section 53BBB of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984.

   Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited 
        For broker  81,172,883  38,540,892 
        For dealer  3,511,167  1,430,121 

 84,684,050  39,971,013 

  Chittagong Stock exchange Limited  
        For broker  2,324,290  1,371,469 
        For dealer  122,366  132,367 

 2,446,656  1,503,836 
Total tax deducted on turnover as per section 53BBB  87,130,706  41,474,849 
Tax deducted at source on bank interest and dividend income  13,706,852  11,015,837 

 100,837,558  52,490,686 

2017 2016

 Taka  Taka 

20 Brokerage commission

Commission for Dhaka Stock Exchanges (DSE):
     Broker  508,735,225  266,211,037 
     Dealer  17,555,837  7,150,606 

 526,291,062  273,361,643 

Commission for Chittagong Stock Exchanges (CSE):

     Broker  15,554,373  9,585,072 

     Dealer  611,821  661,828 

 16,166,193  10,246,900 

 542,457,255  283,608,543 

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 



21 Brokerage commission expense

Howla charges  (Note: 21.1)  203,524  215,288 
Laga charges  (Note: 21.2)  42,510,913  20,093,787 
Charges on corporate/bank guarantee  2,661,458  1,808,333 
International market development fees  16,599,705  11,673,424 

 61,975,600  33,790,832 

21.1 Howla charges

      CSE for broker  198,482  210,284 
      CSE for dealer  5,042  5,004 

 203,524  215,288 

21.2 Laga charges

      DSE for broker  40,047,479  18,879,426 
      DSE for dealer  1,716,497  702,254 

 41,763,976  19,581,680 

      CSE for broker  704,884  478,618 
      CSE for dealer  42,053  33,489 

 746,937  512,107 
 42,510,913  20,093,787 

22 Interest income
Interest on FDR  16,135,452  33,968,757 
Bank interest  42,233,592  21,093,149 
Interest against short-term loan to IDLC Investments Limited  24,065,700  777,083 
Interest on margin loan  9,657,878  4,490,519 

 92,092,622  60,329,508 

23 Interest expense

Interest on short-term  9,841,422  5,509,848 

Interest on overdraft  320,985  1,838,195 

 10,162,407  7,348,043 

24 Net investment income 
Capital gain/(loss) from sale of securities  217,937,412  47,544,834 

Dividend income  37,880,088  23,202,603 

 255,817,500  70,747,437 

25 Other operating income 
Account opening fee  1,076,500  852,000 

BO account maintenance fee  1,686,100  2,128,550 

Transmission fee  566,452  991,045 

Demate & remate fee  40,000  28,000 

Pledge unpledge & others fee  -    27,000 

IPO service charge  45,810  65,545 

Interest income against pre-funding for foreign trade  -    67,105 

 3,414,862  4,159,245 

2017 2016

 Taka  Taka 



322

REPORTS & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -  
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

26 Salaries & allowances
Salaries & allowances  136,641,655  97,177,382 

Gratuity  10,026,164  5,259,046 

Provident fund (Company's Contribution)  4,536,088  3,793,732 

 151,203,907  106,230,160 

Salaries & allowances includes key management compensation of BDT 19,952,902 (2016: BDT 10,532,412). Key management 
personnel comprises the Management Committee, incuding the Managing Director who exercise significant authority and 
play strategic role in the company.

27 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc.

Rent, rates & taxes  24,510,853  27,486,454 

Service charge  4,234,244  2,086,944 

Office maintenance  12,174,964  13,368,090 

Office insurance  534,104  576,257 

Repair & maintenance  1,590,002  3,106,864 

Utilities  4,868,584  5,112,166 

 47,912,751  51,736,775 

28 Legal expenses

Renewal & registration  887,301  1,139,858 

Subscription & fees  1,690,077  226,375 

Legal & professional fees  915,225  910,000 

 3,492,603  2,276,233 

29 Postage, stamp, telecommunication, etc.
Postage and courier  66,202  74,675 

Telephone expenses  1,951,137  1,921,836 

Government fees & stamp duty  67,055  57,750 

Internet connectivity charges  4,817,493  2,001,296 

 6,901,887  4,055,557 

30 Stationery, printing, advertisements, etc.

Printing & stationeries  2,730,716  2,161,236 

Advertisement  1,242,202  155,005 

Selling expense  1,503,580  1,177,240 

Branding & marketing expenses  3,413,328  539,709 

Business promotional expenses  1,270,035  1,671,275 

 10,159,861  5,704,465 

31 Directors' fee & meeting expenses

Directors' fees  213,750  143,750 

Meeting expenses  65,068  27,648 

 278,818  171,398 

2017 2016

 Taka  Taka 



32 Other expenses

Staff training  7,206,981  481,021 

Medical and welfare expenses  227,067  241,895 

Entertainment  780,707  661,986 

Motor vehicle expenses  2,167,721  1,502,887 

Newspapers & periodicals  68,540  64,726 

Travelling and conveyance  1,552,001  1,157,898 

Employees' group insurance premium  453,051  463,267 

Employees' hospitalization insurance premium  621,553  602,098 

Software maintenance  2,659,791  2,516,017 

CDBL transaction fee  1,200,655  477,178 

Bank charges  411,363  387,020 

 17,349,430  8,555,993 

33 Other non-operating income

Miscellaneous income  743,529  666,478 

Cheque dishonour charge  282,500  168,000 

Gain on disposal of fixed assets  523,452  186,534 

 1,549,481  1,021,012 

34 Number of employees
The number of employees for the whole year who received a total remuneration of Taka 36,000 or above were 151 which 
was 155 on 31 December 2016.

35 Related Party Transaction

Name of the 
related party

 Relationship Nature of  
transaction

 Transaction 
during year 

 Closing balance as 
on 31.12.2017 

 Closing balance as 
on 31.12.2016 

IDLC Investments 
Limited 

 Subsidiary of IDLC 
Finance Limited 

 Loan   100,000,000  200,000,000  100,000,000 

36. Date of authorisation

The Board of director has authorised these financial statements for issue on 11 February 2018.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 

2017 2016

 Taka  Taka 
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IDLC Investments Limited
(A fully owned subsidiary of IDLC Finance Limited)

Management Committee (ManCom)

Abul Ahsan Ahmed

Head of Discretionary 
Portfolio Management

Rubayet-E-Ferdous

Chief Operating Officer

Md. Moniruzzaman CFA

Managing Director

Mohammad Jobair Rahman Khan ACA

Head of Group Corporate Affairs  & 
Taxation and Group Company Secretary

Sakhawat Hossain 

Head of Finance

Standing from left

Md. Masud Karim Majumder ACA

Group Chief Financial Officer

Sitting from left

Shamima Akter Lovely
Head of HR- Capital Market & Head of 
Organizational Development

Arif Khan, CFA, FCMA

Group CEO & Managing Director
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Directors’ Report  
to the Shareholders of IDLC Investments Limited

Monower Uddin Ahmed 
Independent Director & Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors have the pleasure in presenting to the members 
of IDLC Investments Limited the Directors’ Report, the audited 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 
auditor’s report thereon along with the capital market overview, 
the Company’s performance and other matters in compliance 
with the Companies Act, 1994, and Corporate Governance 
guidelines of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission.

The Company's principal activities encompass investment 
banking (issue management, underwriting and corporate 
advisory), discretionary portfolio management and margin 
lending. 

IDLC Investments Limited has raised its paid-up capital to 
BDT 2,200 million from the existing BDT 1,400 million through 
issuance of new ordinary shares at par in December 2017. The 
purpose of capital raising is to strengthen the equity and capital 
base of the company. 

IDLC Investments provides a high standard of professional 
and personalized services to its local and NRB customers. The 
Company possesses a proven track record of catering to a 
diverse set of client needs while concurrently maintaining strict 
compliance with the country’s laws and the highest ethical 
standards. IDLC Investments is positioned as one of the top-
ranking merchant banking enterprises in the country, renowned 
for its quality investment banking and portfolio management 
services.

Operational highlights

Investment banking

IDLC Investments Limited (IDLCIL) possesses strong capabilities 
in investment banking, focusing on initial public offerings 
(IPO), repeat public offerings (RPO), rights issue management, 
corporate advisory, merger & acquisitions, underwriting, 
business restructuring, equity valuations, arrangement of pre-
IPO placement/ capital raising for forthcoming IPOs, among 
others.

Our key strength lies in our ability to value and position the 
target company in the financial markets correctly, devise the best 
financial structure, showcase the enterprise to the right investors 
and round-up the entire process smoothly and efficiently, 
leveraging our strong liaison and co-ordination with regulatory 
authorities, thereby ensuring growth and continuous value-
creation for the company, going for public.

2017 has been a year of working on new avenues for Investment 
Banking. During the year, we have successfully executed the 
merger of Ananta Apparels Limited with four companies. Our 
trustee business initiated in 2016, has grown during the year 
with addition of trusteeship of bond issuances of The City Bank 
Limited, United Commercial Bank Limited and Paramount 
Textiles Limited. We have also worked as corporate advisor of 
Bangladesh Honda Private Limited in raising capital from foreign 
investor as well as existing shareholders. Besides, we also have 
provided corporate advisory services to Mir Akhter Hossain 
Limited, Impress-Newtex Composite Textiles Limited and Far 
East Spinning Industries Limited for raising equity capital. 

Since inception, we managed nine IPOs as the issue manager 
and thus worked in raising BDT 6,515 million. By managing 
IPOs, RPOs, rights issues, private placements and capital raising 
activities, IDLCIL helped to raise BDT 34,358 million for its 
clientele, so far. The Company has also provided underwriting 
services to 54 issuers till December 2017. Currently, IDLCIL is 
working as the issue manager for 13 IPO-bound companies, 1 
rights issue and a number of corporate advisory deals.

The key challenges for investment banking continue to be 
extensive and dynamic regulatory changes and sluggish primary 
markets. IDLCIL focuses on overcoming these challenges by 
leveraging its strong brand equity and transparent engagement 
with regulators, investors and other stakeholders. 

In 2018, the investment banking team will continue to 
emphasize on new avenues of business focusing on corporate 
advisory, mergers and acquisitions and equity valuation, apart 
from working on new initial public offerings and rights issuance.

Discretionary portfolio management (DPM) 

IDLCIL’s discretionary portfolio management (DPM) service 
was launched in 2007 as “Managed Cap Invest”, which was 
subsequently rebranded as “MAXCAP” in 2010. We have an 
experienced team of fund managers who manage funds on 



behalf of our investors - by developing appropriate investment 
strategies for value investment with a long-term objective in 
mind. We intend to put clients’ money in the companies that 
have good governance, reliable financials and a sustainable 
business model.  According to desired risk-return profiles, our 
clients can choose from a wide variety of investment products 
including “MAXCAP”, “Easy Invest”, “Profit-Loss Sharing Scheme”, 
“Capital Protected Scheme”, and “Portfolio Advisory Services”.

We are the largest merchant bank in terms of asset under 
management in the discretionary category, serving more than 
3,300 clients, the highest in the industry. Being the pioneer in 
launching monthly investment product “Easy Invest” for retail 
investors in 2016, we have got overwhelming responses from 
around the country providing a satisfactory return of 29.3% in 
2017 to our clients.

IDLCIL’s DPM team has eleven years’ worth of strong track record 
in generating average annual return of 22%. Currently, we have 
asset under management of BDT 2,346 million. 

Margin lending

In December 2004, IDLC Finance launched a margin lending 
product, ”Cap Invest”, and since then, we have been considered 
as one of the top portfolio managers in the capital markets of 
Bangladesh. Subsequently, this business was transferred under 
a fully-owned subsidiary company, under the name of “IDLC 
Investments Limited”. Even before the market downturn in 2010, 
IDLC Investments had significantly reduced its margin loans to 
reduce customer risk profiles in volatile markets and also align 
with the regulatory framework of capital adequacy, single obligor 
limits and capital market exposure limits. 

During the year 2017, we went for counselling our clients to 
emphasize the need for building a constructive portfolio by 
minimizing market risks to the extent possible. We informed 
them regarding the projected market scenario, stock analysis, 
effects of leverage, the importance of effective risk control and 
the significance of disciplined portfolio management in order to 
build long-term wealth. As a means to this, we provided them 
with different types of value-added services (VAS). Overall, our 
focused human resource strategy, contemporary processes 
and technology and high-quality research reports have been 
instrumental to meet our clients’ wealth management goals. 

The appetite for margin loans was moderate among clients in 
2017, wherein margin loan was in downward trend in 2016. 
Considering the scenario we focused on counselling clients to 
use margin cautiously. As the market has experienced a return of 
24% in 2017, we have been able to grow our margin loan basket 
moderately in a  risk managed way.

Risk management

IDLCIL continues to remain proactive and prudent with regards 
to its risk management tools and is widely considered as an 
industry trendsetter. We introduced the concept of mark-to-
market (MTM) earlier through which we were able to protect 
client equity levels. We adopted different types of netting 
policies as well to reduce the loan burden, provided alerts to 
customers to book unrealized gains and supported them with 
research based recommendations. It is a matter of pride that 
the company still matched by none in the industry in terms 

of proactive risk management. This has empowered us with a 
distinctive competitive advantage. 

Financial highlights

The year 2017 proved to be a year of growth for IDLCIL with the 
Company attaining a net operating income of BDT 451million, 
which is a significant improvement from BDT 243 million 
reported in 2016. Consequently, the Company registered a profit 
after tax of BDT 277 million, representing a growth of 62.58%, 
year-on-year. The following table demonstrates the breakdown 
of revenue streams from different products.

A1: Portfolio operations

Operational income 2015 2016 2017

Net interest income  149,689,441 140,222,587 102,598,485

Portfolio management 
services

  67,786,298 44,563,189 46,614,882

Settlement and 
transaction fees

  21,657,515 20,020,841 58,629,376

Documentation fees          66,000 746,000 945,500

Total operational 
revenue  239,199,254 205,552,617 208,788,243

In the year 2017, as our net interest income stood at  
BDT 103 million against BDT 140 million in 2016, with a 27% 
unfavorable growth due to higher interest expenses compared 
to 2016. In 2017, margin loan has increased coupled with 
proprietary investment – requiring more borrowed fund. With 
regard to fees from portfolio management services, there was a 
4.6% growth, while settlement and transaction fees increased by 
193% contributable to higher market turnover.

A2: Investment banking 

Investment banking 2015 2016 2017

Issue management fees 4,612,000 11,000,000 2,500,000

Underwriting 12,171,083 204,800 -

Corporate advisory fees 1,279,403 17,213,203 44,059,460

Total revenue from 
investment banking

18,062,486 28,418,003 46,559,460

2017

Investment Banking Issue management fees
Corporate advisory fees

Underwriting

2015 2016

5

12

1

17

11

0.2 3

44in BDT mn
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Revenue from investment banking stood at BDT 46.56 million in 
2017 whereas 95% contribution came from corporate advisory 
fees. The company is focusing more on advisory services, with 
an added emphasis on mergers and acquisitions. We have a few 
pipeline IPO deals, revenues from which are expected to be gen-
erated in future.

A3: Investment income

Investment income 2015 2016 2017

Capital gain 41,748,776 50,976,922 209,433,257

Dividend income 5,798,053 17,380,757 48,423,996
Income from Zero 
Coupon Bond

- 10,798,753 18,512,146

Total Investment income 47,546,829 79,156,432 276,369,399

Investment income was BDT 276.37 million in 2017, where sig-
nificant contribution came from Capital gain (76%). This was due 
to a higher investment size from the preceding year as well as 
healthy returns from the equity investments. 

B) Operational expenses 

Investment income 2015 2016 2017

Salary and allowances 55,086,696 49,416,932 58,102,739

General and 
administrative expenses 

25,601,393 29,757,705 30,933,493

Total operational 
expenses 80,688,089 79,174,637 89,036,232

2017

Investment Income Capital gain Dividend income
Income from Zero Coupon Bond

2015 2016

42
51

209

6
17 11

48

19

in BDT mn

2017

Operational Expenses Salary and allowances
General and administrative expenses

2015 2016

55 

49 

58 

26 
30 31 

in BDT mn

The Company incurred a total cost of BDT 89.04 million during 
2017, out of which 65% was incurred for salary and allowances 
and the rest was for general and administrative purposes. 
Continuing our effort to be cost conscious, the company 
attained the cost income ratio at 16.5% in 2017, on the back of 
significantly higher income generation. 

Human resource development

IDLCIL strongly believes that its human resources are its most 
precious assets and recognizes them as building blocks for the 
Company to perform sustainably. IDLCIL continues to develop 
and implement proper human resource policies to motivate its 
employees and ensures their optimum contribution towards 
the achievement of common goals. As our resources represent 
a significant competitive edge, the Company continues its policy 
of recruiting the best professionals and implementing diverse 
training and motivational programs to develop and retain high-
quality, performance-oriented personnel.

Few years back the Company revamped its operational model 
by centralizing most of its operation, which saw further 
improvement to the model. 

Diversity

No. of employees 2015 2016 2017

Male 24 24 24

Female 5 5 5

Total 29 29 29

Training and development

As part of IDLCIL’s human resource development program, a 
large number of employees underwent training, which included 
both managerial development and technical modules. During 
2017, eighty five (85) participants were trained in ten (10) 
different local training programs. We also arranged training for 
Six (6) participants in four different countries, i.e. USA, Singapore, 
Indonesia and India. 

Outlook and strategies

	 2017 was a very good year for capital market in Bangladesh. 
The Index grew by 24.0%. In 2016, market return was only 
8.8%. Market turnover also improved significantly during 
the year, from BDT 4.9bn to BDT 8.7bn, registering 75.80% 
growth.

	 2017 saw a low interest rate regime. This prompted 
people to choose capital market as a preferred investment 
destination. However, 2018 is showing indications of 
increasing interest rates. Thus, a portion of the investable 
funds may flow back to fixed deposits. 

	 Any rise in interest rates is likely to result in a reduction of 
margin lending business throughout the industry. 

	 Our focus will be to grow our discretionary portfolio 
management business. We hope to continue to grow ‘Easy 
Invest’ product, the monthly investment scheme, further in 
2018.



	 We will continue to be prudent in managing our 
investments in equities. The exposure will be rebalanced if 
needs and as decided by the investment committee.

	 Our strive to remain as the top investment banking firm will 
be pursued in the areas of issue management, mergers and 
acquisitions and other corporate advisory related services.

Books of accounts

Proper books of accounts of IDLC Investments Limited have 
been maintained. Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements. 
The accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent 
judgment. International Accounting Standards (IAS)/ Bangladesh 
Accounting Standards (BAS)/ International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS)/ Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards 
(BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in 
the preparation of the financial statements and any departure 
therefrom has been adequately disclosed. The financial 
statements prepared by the management of IDLC Investments 
Limited present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity.

Internal control

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored. 

Distribution of profit for 2017

The Company reported a profit of BDT 276,518,680 in the year 
2017. Considering continued market volatility and an uncertain 
economic environment, the Board has decided not to distribute  
any profit to the shareholders for the year 2017.

Appointment of Auditors

In terms of Article 18.2 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Company shall at each annual general meeting, 
appoint an auditor or auditors to hold office until the next annual 
general meeting. The Auditors of the Company, A. Qasem & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, has completed the first year as Auditor 

of the Company. They are eligible for re-appointment as Auditors 
of the Company for the year 2018 and they have also offered 
themselves for re-appointment.

Accordingly, the Board recommended to appoint A. Qasem & 
Co., Chartered Accountants, to the shareholders at the AGM as 
the auditors of the Company for the year 2018 at an existing 
remuneration of BDT 100,000 (Taka one lakh only, excluding 
VAT). 

Going concern

There are no significant doubts upon the IDLC Investments 
Limited's ability to continue as a going concern.

Appreciation

I would like to thank my Board colleagues for their continued 
support and on their behalf, I would like to express my heartiest 
gratitude to the entire team of IDLC Investments Limited. It 
would be unfair to not acknowledge the exceptional efforts of 
our employees who worked in praiseworthy partnerships to 
meet the many challenges during the year. They were called 
upon to embrace some major challenges while concurrently 
maintaining the highest standards of service to our clients. 
They met the challenges and we thank each of them for their 
extraordinary performance.

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board, I would like to thank our 
loyal clients and honorable shareholders for their continued faith 
and support. Taking this opportunity, the members of the Board 
would also like to thank the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, Dhaka Stock Exchange, Chittagong Stock Exchange 
and Central Depository Bangladesh Limited who continued to 
remain our partners in our journey of growth.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-

Monower Uddin Ahmed 
Chairman
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Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDLC Investments Limited, which comprise the statement of financial position 
as at 31 December 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act 1994 and applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of  the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of  IDLC Investments Limited as at 
31 December 2017, and its finacial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards and other applicable laws and regualtions.

We also report that:

(i)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;	

(ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our 
examination of those books;	

(iii)	 The Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement 
with the books of account and returns; and 

(iv)	 The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Dated, Dhaka
14 February 2018    

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of IDLC Investments Limited



IDLC Investments Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2017

Particulars Notes
December 31

2017 2016

ASSETS

Non Current Assets 5  17,437,118  15,978,988 
Property, plant and equipment 6  383,258  390,998 
Intangible asset 7  177,786,322  159,274,176 
Investments in bond 8  7,321,050  5,444,869 
Deferred tax asset  202,927,748  181,089,030 

Current Assets
Investment in marketable securities 9  2,069,579,341  511,384,148 
Margin loans to portfolio clients 10  1,977,953,756  1,300,509,452 
Account receivables 11  358,961,938  243,798,925 
Cash and cash equivalents 12  223,624,499  355,533,631 
Advance, deposits & prepayments  5,108,779  6,715,315 
Advance income tax  201,318,934  106,329,798 

 4,836,547,247  2,524,271,268 
Total Assets  5,039,474,995  2,705,360,298 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Share capital 13  2,200,000,000  1,400,000,000 
Retained Earnings 14  508,922,017  232,403,337 

 2,708,922,017  1,632,403,337 
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Deferred liabilities - gratuity payable  11,550,569  8,973,917 
Term loan from Investment Corporation Bangladesh 15  -    -   

 11,550,569  8,973,917 

Current Liabilities
Short-term loan 16  1,430,349,693  360,800,001 
Portfolio investors' fund 17  381,272,608  235,466,472 
Account payables 18  52,237,073  192,719,137 
Liabilities for expenses 19  18,936,615  14,811,435 
Provision for margin loan 20  51,744,385  47,099,445 
Provision for income tax 21  384,462,034  213,086,556 
Total Liabilities  2,319,002,409  1,063,983,044 
Total Equity and Liabilities  5,039,474,995  2,705,360,298 

'The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Dated, Dhaka
14 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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IDLC Investments Limited 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Particulars Notes
December 31

2017 2016

Operating Income
Interest income 22  102,598,485  140,222,587 
Income from portfolio management services 23  46,614,882  44,563,189 
Settlement and transaction fees 24  58,629,376  20,020,841 
Documentation charges 25  945,500  746,000 
Income from investment banking 26  46,559,460  28,418,003 
Investment Income 27  276,369,399  79,156,432 
Other income 28  7,982,047  9,407,305 

 539,699,149  322,534,357 
Operating Expense
General & administrative expenses 29  (82,622,488)  (72,570,370)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  (6,146,419)  (6,204,806)
Amortization on IT software  (267,326)  (399,461)
Profit before provision for diminution in value of investments and margin loan  450,662,917  243,359,720 

Provision for diminution in value of investments  -    -   
Provision on margin loan  (4,644,941)  17,672,689 
Profit before income tax  446,017,976  261,032,408 
Provision for income tax
Current tax  (171,375,478)  (90,000,000)
Deferred tax income/(expense) 30  1,876,181  (951,379)

 (169,499,296)  (90,951,379)

Net profit  276,518,680  170,081,029 
Other comprehensive Income  -    -   
Total Comprehensive Income  276,518,680  170,081,030 

The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Dated, Dhaka
14 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 



IDLC Investments Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Particulars
December 31

2017 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit during the year  276,518,680  170,081,030 
Item not involving in movement of cash:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  6,413,744  6,604,267 
Loss/(Gain) on Disposal of Fixed Asset  (413,730)  527,904 
Provision for diminution in value of investments  -    -   
Provision (release)/charged for Margin Loan  4,644,941  (17,672,689)
Provision for income tax  171,375,478  90,000,000 
Liabilities for expenses  4,125,180  2,075,532 
Decrease in Deferred tax assets  (1,876,181)  951,379 
Increase in Deferred Liabilities - Gratuity payable  2,576,652  1,096,988 
Cash generated from operating activities before changes in working capital:  186,846,083  83,583,382 

Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in Account receivables  (115,163,013)  67,837,442 
Decrease/(increase) in Advance, Prepayments & Deposits  1,606,536  965,685 
Increase in Advance Income Tax (AIT)  (94,989,136)  (51,628,642)
Increase/(Decrease) in account payables  (140,482,063)  163,297,290 

 (349,027,676)  180,471,775 
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)  114,337,087  434,136,187 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (7,947,477)  (11,431,627)
Sale proceed of Property, plant and equipment  497,073  -   
Purchase of Marketable Securities  (1,558,195,193)  (327,170,798)
Purchase of Zero Coupon Bond  (18,512,146)  (148,475,425)
Margin loan realized from portfolio clients  (677,444,304)  143,812,876 
Net cash (used in)/flow from investing activities (B)  (2,261,602,047)  (343,264,973)

C. Cash flows from financing activities 
Receipt/(repayment) of loan  1,069,549,693  197,883,117 
Proceeds from issuance of stock  800,000,000  -   
Receipt/(repayment) of Portfolio investors' fund  145,806,136  17,424,408 
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (C)  2,015,355,829  215,307,526 
Net cash surplus for the year (A+B+C)  (131,909,131)  306,178,740 

Cash and Bank Balance at the beginning of the year  355,533,631  49,354,891 
Cash and Bank Balance at the end of the year  223,624,499  355,533,631 

*Cash and Bank Balance:

Cash at Bank  189,474,499  216,721,131 
Fixed Deposits  34,150,000  138,812,500 

 223,624,499  355,533,631 

'The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Dated, Dhaka
14 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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(Amount in Taka)

Particulars Share Capital Retained  
Earnings

Total 
Equity

Balance as on 01 January 2017  1,400,000,000  232,403,337  1,632,403,337 
Capital Raising  800,000,000  -    800,000,000 
Net profit for the year  -    276,518,680  276,518,680 
Balance as on 31 December 2017  2,200,000,000  508,922,017  2,708,922,017 

Balance as on 01 January 2016  1,400,000,000  62,322,307  1,462,322,307 
Net profit for the year  -    170,081,030  170,081,030 
Balance as on 31 December 2016  1,400,000,000  232,403,337  1,632,403,337 

'The annexed notes from 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

IDLC Investments Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
14 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 



IDLC Investments Limited  

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

1	 Company and its activities

1.1	 Background and legal status

	 IDLC Investments Limited (the "Company") is a private limited company incorporated on 19 May 2010 under the Companies 
Act, 1994 having its registered office at D R Tower (4th floor), 65/2/2, Bir Protik Gazi Golam Dostogir Road, Purana Paltan, 
Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh. It is a wholly owned subsidiary of IDLC Finance Limited since inception. The Company received 
Merchant Banking License (license no. MB-67/2011) from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) on 02 
August 2011 and commenced its operation on 16 August 2011.

1.2	 Principal activities and nature of operation

	 IDLC Investments Limited provides high standard of professional and personalized services to its local and NRB clients. The 
company's principal activity includes the following:

	 i. Investment banking (issue management, underwriting of shares, and corporate advisory);

	 ii. Discretionary portfolio management;	

	 iii. Non-discretionary portfolio management;

	 iv. Own portfolio management, etc.

2	 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

2.1	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the 
Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

2.2	 Other regulatory compliance	

	 As required, IDLC Investments Limited also complies with the applicable provisions of the following major laws/ statutes: 

	 - Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993;						    

	 - Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987;						    

	 - Securities and Exchange Commission (Merchant Banker and Portfolio Manager) Rules, 1996; 

	 - The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;						    

	 - The Income Tax Rules, 1984;						    

	 - Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881; and						    

	 Other applicable laws and regulations.	

2.3	 Basis of measurement

	 These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention in accordance 
with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).

2.4	 Components of financial statements

	 -Statement of Financial Position						    

	 -Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income						    

	 -Statement of Changes in Equity						    

	 -Statement of Cash Flows, and						   

	 -Notes to the Financial Statements

2.5	 Functional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) currency, which is the functional currency of the company. 
All financial information presented in Taka has been rounded off to nearest BDT except as stated otherwise.
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2.6	 Use of estimates and judgments

	 The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed ongoing basis. Revision of accounting estimates is recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	 In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

Note: 5 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment.
Note: 8 Deferred tax Assets

Note: 11 Accounts receivables
Note: 18 Accounts payables
Note: 19 Liabilities for expenses
Note: 21 Provision for income tax

2.7	 Going concern

	 The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors 
continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The current credit facilities and adequate 
resources of the company provide sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of its existing businesses and 
operations. 

2.8	 Reporting period	

	 The financial period of the Company is similar to calendar years covers one year from 01  January to 31 December and is 
being followed consistently.

3	 Significant accounting policies
	 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently (otherwise as stated) to all periods presented in these 

financial statements.

3.1	 Property, plant and equipment

3.1.1	 Recognition and measurement

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecation. The cost of the property, plant and 
equipment includes purchase price/construction cost and other directly attributable costs of bringing the property, plant 
and equipment to working conditions for their intended use.

3.1.2	 Subsequent costs

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of the item 
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be 
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit and 
loss account as incurred.

3.1.3	 Depreciation & Amortization

	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged using straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation / amortization rates are as follows:

Nature of Assets Rate of Depreciation / Amortization
Curtain and carpets 33.33%
Electrical equipment 20.00%
IT software and development (amortization) 33.33%
Furniture and fixture 12.50%
Office decoration 20.00%
Office equipment 20.00%
Telephone and telex 33.33%
Motors vehicles 25.00%

	 Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment is calculated and charged from the date of putting the assets in 
to use irrespective of the value and purchase/ acquisition date of the property, plant and equipment.



3.2	 Intangible assets	

3.2.1	 Recognition and measurement

	 Intangible assets viz computer software those are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are measured 
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

3.2.2	 Subsequent expenditure

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets 
to which it relates. 

3.2.3	 Amortization

	 Amortization is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values 
over their estimated useful lives based on the management's best estimates; i.e., 3 years (33.33%).

3.3	 Impairment

	 The carrying value of the Company's assets other than inventories, are reviewed at closing date to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the profit and loss account.	

3.4	 Investment in shares

	 Investments are stated at cost or market value whichever is lower. A security which is not listed at stock exchange as on the 
reporting date then the price is shown at cost. 

3.5	 Taxation

3.5.1	 Current tax

	 Provision for income tax is made on the basis of company’s computation based on the best estimate of taxable profit in 
accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 1984.

3.5.2	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is calculated as per Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 12: Income Taxes. Deferred tax is recognised on 
difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax 
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all 
deductible temporary differences. 

3.6	 Revenue recognition

3.6.1	 Interest income

	 Interest income is recognized on the loan balance of portfolio clients on monthly accrual basis and charged to clients’ balance 
on quarterly basis. 

3.6.2	 Portfolio management fees	

	 Portfolio management fees are recognized on the market value of the clients’ portfolio on monthly accrual basis and charged 
to clients’ balance on quarterly basis.

3.6.3	 Issue Management & Corporate Advisory

	 Issue management and corporate advisory fees are recognized according to the stages of completion of services as agreed 
and defined in Issue management and corporate advisory agreement between company and client.

3.6.4	 Dividend income and profit or loss on sale of securities

	 Dividend is accounted for as income when right to receive is established whereas profit or loss arising from the sale of 
securities is accounted for only when the securities are sold/offloaded.	

3.7	 Provision

	 A provision is recognized in the accounts when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it 
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
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3.8	 Events after the balance sheet date

	 Events after the balance sheet date that provide additional information about the company's position at the balance sheet 
date are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the balance sheet date that are not adjusting event are disclosed 
in the notes when material.

3.9	 Application of Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs):

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirement of BAS as adopted by The Institute of  
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and applicable in Bangladesh. IDLC Investments Limited applied following BAS 
and BFRS:	

Name of the BAS BAS No. Status
Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied
Statements of Cash Flow 7 Applied
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 8 Applied
Events after the Balance Sheet Period 10 Applied
Income Taxes 12 Applied
Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied
Revenue 18 Applied
Employee Benefits 19 Applied
Borrowing Costs 23 Applied
Related Party Disclosures 24 Applied
Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 Applied
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Applied
Intangible Assets 38 Applied
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 39 Not Applied

4	 Financial Risk Management	

	 The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

	 ** Credit risk

	 ** Market risk

	 ** Liquidity risk

	 This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's objectives, policies 
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital.

	 The Board of Directors (BOD) has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework.

4.1	 Credit risk	

	 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Company's loans and advances to customers and investment 
securities. These loans and advances are fully backed by the securities held by the customer.

	 With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Company, the maximum exposure is equal to the 
carrying amounts of the financial assets.	

4.2	 Market risk

	 The Company's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions and trades. Market risk is the risk of 
losses due to failure of entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed.

	 For such transactions the Company only allows the purchase of tradable securities if the customer has adequate cash/
purchase power beforehand.

4.3	 Liquidity risk

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they falls due. The company's 
approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the company's reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash 
equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow 
forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/
fund to make the expected payment within due date.



31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

5 Property, plant and equipment

A. Cost 

Opening balance  40,325,568  41,686,929 

Addition during the year/period  7,687,891  11,431,627 

 48,013,459  53,118,556 

Disposal during the year/period  (3,550,000)  (12,792,989)

 44,463,459  40,325,567 

B. Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance  24,346,579  29,972,358 

Charged during the year/period  6,146,419  6,204,806 

 30,492,998  36,177,164 

Disposal during the year/period  (3,466,657)  (11,830,585)

 27,026,341  24,346,579 

C. Written down value (A-B)  17,437,118  15,978,988 

A schedule of property, plant and equipment is given in Annexure-A.

6 Intangible asset
A. Cost 
Opening balance  1,809,369  1,732,304 
Addition during the year/period  259,586  77,064 

 2,068,954  1,809,368 
B. Accumulated amortization
Opening balance  1,418,371  1,018,910 
Charged during the year/period  267,326  399,461 

 1,685,697  1,418,371 
C. Written down value (A-B)  383,258  390,998 

7 Investments in bond
Investment in commercial bond  159,274,176  148,475,425 
Interest capitalized during the period  18,512,146  10,798,751 

 177,786,322  159,274,176 

IDLC Investments Limited made investment in commercial zero coupon bond issued by Impress-Nentex Composite 
Textiles Limited vide bond certificate ref # INCTL ZCB: 01-21 in 12 May 2016 for face value of 210,000,000.

8 Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax assets is arrived at as follows:

Carrying 
Amount

 Tax base 

Taxable/
(deductible) 
temporary 
difference

Taka Taka Taka

As on 31 December 2017

Property, plant and equipment  17,756,828  25,729,052  (7,972,224)
Gratuity provision (net of payment)  (11,550,577)  -    (11,550,577)
Net taxable temporary difference  (19,522,801)
Applicable tax rate 37.50%
Deferred tax - Assets  7,321,050 
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Carrying 
Amount

 Tax base 

Taxable/
(deductible) 
temporary 
difference

Taka Taka Taka

As on 31 December 2016

Property, plant and equipment  16,153,944  21,699,677  (5,545,733)
Gratuity provision (net of payment)  (8,973,917)  -    (8,973,917)
Net taxable temporary difference  (14,519,650)
Applicable tax rate 37.50%

Deferred tax - Assets  5,444,869 

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

9 Investment in marketable securities
Investment in available-for-sale securities  (Note: 9.1)  2,069,579,341  491,384,148 
Investment in Initial Public Offering  (Note: 9.2)  -    20,000,000 

 2,069,579,341  511,384,148 

9.1 Investment in available-for-sale securities

Sector-wise details of marketable securities holding position as of 31 December 2017 is given below:

 Name of industry  Cost price 
 Market price as 
on 31.12.2017 

Bank  818,924,649  851,718,032 
Engineering  4,960,957  5,923,192 
Food  86,515,938  90,560,031 
IT Sector  534,261  1,338,392 
Mutual Funds  23,052,945  22,851,449 
Pharmaceuticals & Chemicals  713,690,814  717,815,234 
Telecommunication  421,899,777  469,548,237 

 2,069,579,341  2,159,754,566 

All investment in marketable securities are valued on aggregate portfolio basis, at the lower of cost and market value, at 
the balance sheet date.

On balance sheet date, the aggregate portfolio value at cost price was BDT 2,069,579,341 and at market price was BDT 
2,159,754,566, therefore if the reporting entity was recognized the unrealized gain on portfolio then it would recognize BDT 
90,175,225 in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. But as per FID circular No. 08 dated August 3, 2002 
of Bangladesh Bank (The Central Bank), IDLC Finance Limited, the Parent Company of reporting entity, recognizes its aggregate 
portfolio on cost value and no unrealized gain is recognized. So, the reporting entity as a wholly owned subsidiary of the IDLC 
Finance Limited, follows the similar accounting policy for recognizing the investment in securities listed in both stock exchanges.

Market price for securities not listed as on reporting date, has been shown at cost for calculation purpose. 

9.2 Investment in Initial Public Offering (IPO)  -    20,000,000 
IDLC Investments Limited has applied for 2,000,000 ordinary shares at face value of  BDT 10 of Pacific Denims Limited as of 
31 December 2016.

10 Margin loans to portfolio clients 

Opening balance  1,300,509,452  1,444,322,328 

Loan disbursed during the year/period  7,221,883,496  3,509,136,845 

 8,522,392,947  4,953,459,173 

Loan reimbursed during the year/period  (6,544,439,191)  (3,652,949,721)

 1,977,953,756  1,300,509,452 



11 Account receivables

Receivable from corporate advisory  22,983,750  4,133,750 
Receivable from portfolio advisory services  800,132  465,816 
Receivable from issue management fees  6,500,000  4,350,000 
Receivable from Underwriting Commission  -    209,660 
Receivable from brokers  324,164,117  232,006,300 
Receivable on FDR Interest  -    1,371,013 
Other receivables  4,513,939  1,262,386 

 358,961,938  243,798,925 

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at Bank  (Note: 12.1)  189,474,499  216,721,131 

Fixed Deposit Receipt                             (Note: 12.2)  34,150,000  138,812,500 

 223,624,499  355,533,631 

12.1 Cash at Bank 

Name of the Bank Branch  A/C No  Type

Standard Chartered Bank Gulshan 1110866 CD  177,008,443  148,701,800 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon Sylhet 1807005260 CD 21,000 19,000 

Commercial Bank of Ceylon Sylhet 8807005815 CD 318,025 2,244,948 

One Bank Limited Principal 1300000988 CD  8,645,318  2,077,802 

NRB Bank Limited Dilkusha 1081030007238 CD 344,147 62,611,214 

NRB Bank Limited Dilkusha 1081030007229 CD 2,028,858.92  -   

NRB Bank Limited Dilkusha 1081030029855 CD 674,999.99  -   

BRAC Bank Limited Motijheel 1505201920062000 CD  433,707  1,066,367 

 189,474,499  216,721,131 

12.2 Fixed Deposit Receipt                            

Institution Branch Type A/C No

IDLC Finance Limited* Dilkusha FDR

10253112385001  -    700,000 
10253112385009  1,400,000  1,400,000 
10253112385007  -    1,700,000 
10253112385006  30,000,000  30,000,000 
10253112385003  700,000  700,000 
10253112385002  700,000  700,000 
10253112385004  600,000  600,000 
10252212385002  -    700,000 
 10252212385004  -    700,000 
 10253112385010  750,000  750,000 

Lankabangla Finance 
Limited 

Jessore FDR 000821000000004  -    50,862,500 

Phoenix Finance and 
Investments Limited 

Dilkusha FDR 21303/16  -    50,000,000 

 34,150,000  138,812,500 

*Fixed Deposit Receipts are kept with IDLC Finance Limited represents the Discretionary Portfolio Management Clients 
fund under Capital Protected Scheme. 

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 
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13 Share capital

Authorized Capital
30,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each  3,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 

Issued, subscribed & paid up capital  (Note: 13.1)  2,200,000,000  1,400,000,000 

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of Tk. 2,200,000,000 is divided into 22,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 100 each. 
Details are as follows:

13.1 IDLC Finance Limited
21,999,999 shares of Tk. 100 each fully paid up  2,199,999,900  1,399,999,900 
Mr. Asif Saad Bin Shams 
1 share of Tk. 100 each fully paid up  100  100 

 2,200,000,000  1,400,000,000 
IDLC Investments Limited has raised its paid-up capital to BDT 2,200 million from existing BDT 1,400 million through is-
suing new ordinary shares at par in December 2017. The purpose of capital raising is to strengthen the equity and capital 
base of the company.

14 Retained Earnings/(Loss)

Opening balance  232,403,337  62,322,307 
Net profit for the year/period  276,518,680  170,081,030 

 508,922,017  232,403,337 

15 Term loan from Investment Corporation Bangladesh

Opening balance  -    35,416,883 
Loan received during the year/period  -    -   

 -    35,416,883 
Loan paid during the year/period  -    (35,416,883)

 -    -   

Term loan represents loan from Investment Corporation of Bangladesh under "Puji Bazare Khotigroshto Khudro Biniogka-
rider Shohyaota Tohobil" refinanced by Government of Bangladesh. 

 16 Short term loan

Borrowing from IDLC Finance Limited  (Note: 16.1)  1,230,349,693  260,800,001 
Borrowing from IDLC Securities Limited  (Note: 16.2)  200,000,000  100,000,000 

 1,430,349,693  360,800,001 

 16.1 Borrowing from IDLC Finance Limited

Opening balance  260,800,001  127,500,001 
Loan received during the year/period  10,098,399,692  2,145,900,000 

 10,359,199,693  2,273,400,001 
Loan paid during the year/period  (9,128,850,000)  (2,012,600,000)

 1,230,349,693  260,800,001 

Borrowing from IDLC Finance Limited, parent company, to accommodate the regular financial requirements for margin 
lending which is effective from 16 August 2011 vide sanction letter reference no. 410.9/4103 for a demand loan having 
limit of Taka. 6,500 million and renewed for a revolving demand loan having limit of Taka 1,700 million on 18 September 
2017 vide sanction letter ref # IDLC/TR/2017/2332.

 16.2 Borrowing from IDLC Securities Limited

Opening balance  100,000,000  -   
Loan received during the year/period  5,700,000,000  599,500,000 

 5,800,000,000  599,500,000 
Loan paid during the year/period  (5,600,000,000)  (499,500,000)

 200,000,000  100,000,000 

Loan from IDLC Securities Limited, wholly owned subsidiary of IDLC Finance Limited, to accommodate the regular financial 
requirements which was effective from 01 January 2012 vide agreement no IDLCSL/12/01/54 for intercompany lending 
and borrowing facility.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 



 17 Portfolio investors' fund

Opening balance  235,466,472  218,042,064 
Deposit and share sold by clients  10,248,966,130  2,477,411,144 

 10,484,432,602  2,695,453,208 
Purchase of share and withdraw by clients  (10,103,159,994)  (2,459,986,736)

 381,272,608  235,466,472 

Portfolio investor's fund represents the unutilized balance of the IDLC Investments Limited's clients portfolio.

 18 Account payables

Interest payable to Investment Corporation of Bangladesh  -    -   
Payable against clients' withdrawal & others  16,596,183  111,838,856 
Broker payables  34,575,851  80,602,700 
Other payables  (Note 18.1)  1,065,039  277,581 

 52,237,073  192,719,137 

18.1 Other payables

IDLCIL employees' provident fund  -    1,336 
IDLCIL employees' welfare fund  224,209  176,618 
Others  840,829  99,627 

 1,065,039  277,581 

 19 Liabilities for expenses

Salary and allowance  16,638,075  12,000,000 
CDBL charges  360,225  752,333 
Postage and courier  36,588  78,731 
Office rent  -    -   
Office maintenance  926,783  769,713 
Telephone & telex bill  83,364  185,541 
Utilities  278,336  299,327 
Legal & professional fees  554,146  609,340 
Printing & stationery  7,185  11,246 
Car maintenance and others  51,913  105,204 

 18,936,615  14,811,435 

 20 Provision for margin loan

Provision for margin loan  (Note: 20.1)  16,486,267  11,841,327 
Provision for unrealized loss in portfolio  (Note: 20.2)  35,258,118  35,258,118 

 51,744,385  47,099,445 

Provision for margin loan is being kept at 1% as per Rules 36 of Merchant Banker and Portfolio Manager Rules, 1996 of 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission. Moreover, Provision for unrealized loss in portfolio (Own and client 
portfolio) has been made for shortfall in negative equity existed as on 31 December 2015 as per BSEC directive no.  BSEC/
CMRRCD/2009-193/203 dated 28 December 2017.

 20.1 Provision for margin loan

Opening balance  11,841,327  10,081,161 
Charged during the year/period  4,644,941  1,760,166 

 16,486,267  11,841,327 
Released during the year/period  -    -   

 16,486,267  11,841,327 

General provision is being kept at 1% as per Rules 36 of Merchant Banker and Portfolio Manager Rules, 1996 of 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 
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 20.2 Provision for unrealized loss in portfolio

Opening balance  35,258,118  54,690,973 
Charged during the year/period  -    -   

 35,258,118  54,690,973 
 Released during the year/period  -    19,432,855 

 35,258,118  35,258,118 

Provision for unrealized loss in portfolio (Own and client portfolio) has been made for shortfall in negative equity existed 
as on 31 December 2015 as per BSEC directive no.  BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-193/203 dated 28 December 2017.

 21 Provision for income tax

Opening balance  213,086,556  123,086,556 
Add: Charged during the year/period  171,375,478  90,000,000 

 384,462,034  213,086,556 

2017 2016
 Taka  Taka 

 22 Interest income

Income from DPM clients 47,563.69 11,766.00 
Income from Cap Invest clients  201,018,833  154,934,369 

 201,066,397  154,946,135 
Interest expenses on borrowing (Note: 22.1)  (98,467,912)  (14,723,548)

 102,598,485  140,222,587 

22.1 Interest expenses on borrowing

IDLC Finance Limited  74,402,212  12,349,153 
IDLC Securities Limited  24,065,700  777,083 
Investment Corporation of Bangladesh  -    1,597,312 

 98,467,912  14,723,548 

 23 Income from portfolio management services

Income from DPM clients  26,164,995  31,807,465 
Portfolio advisory service  1,796,364  415,343 
Income from cap invest clients  18,653,523  12,340,381 

 46,614,882  44,563,189 

 24 Settlement and transaction fees

Income from DPM clients  7,668,696  3,743,587 
Income from capital invest clients  60,547,747  19,589,642 

 68,216,443  23,333,229 
CDBL expenses  (9,587,066)  (3,312,388)

 58,629,376  20,020,841 

 25 Documentation charges

Income from DPM clients  862,000  707,500 
Income from cap invest clients  83,500  38,500 

 945,500  746,000 

26 Income from investment banking

Issue management  2,500,000  11,000,000 
Underwriting  -    204,800 
Corporate advisory  44,059,460  17,213,203 

 46,559,460  28,418,003 



27 Investment income

Capital gain/(loss) on investments  (Note: 27.1)  209,433,257  50,976,922 
Dividend income from marketable securities 48,423,996  17,380,757 
Income from Zero Coupon Bond  18,512,146  10,798,753 

 276,369,399  79,156,432 

27.1 Capital gain/(loss) on investments

Sale price  4,001,214,471  611,474,915 
Cost of investment  (3,791,781,214)  (560,497,993)

 209,433,257  50,976,922 

28 Other income

Interest income on SND accounts  2,064,550  1,454,915 
Interest income on fixed deposit receipt  593,301  7,121,013 
Gain on disposal of fixed asset  413,730  -   
Income from DPM-PLS Scheme  2,487,892  -   
Other charges  2,422,575  831,377 

 7,982,047  9,407,305 

29 General and administrative expenses

Salary and allowances  (Note: 29.1)  58,102,739  49,416,932 
Statutory audit fees  115,000  86,250 
Legal & professional fees  1,213,460  599,310 
Postage and courier  61,300  177,718 
Renewal and registration  515,175  169,202 
Director's remuneration  218,750  210,250 
Printing & stationery  679,678  738,834 
Promotional expenses  4,136,811  3,510,592 
Motor vehicle expenses  1,154,596  1,110,037 
Insurance  38,349  213,690 
Travel and conveyance  566,579  466,140 
Training and developments  1,583,652  156,843 
Entertainment  1,858,008  1,181,755 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets  -    527,904 
Other operational expenses  219,781  101,511 
Office rent, maintenance & services  (Note: 29.2)  12,158,611  13,903,402 

 82,622,488  72,570,370 

29.1 Salary and allowances

Salary and allowances  52,332,271  45,306,712 
Gratuity  4,326,747  2,706,085 
Provident fund (Company's Contribution)  1,443,721  1,404,135 

 58,102,739  49,416,932 

Salaries & allowances includes key management compensation of  BDT 18,009,782 (2016: BDT 14,851,814). Key mangment 
personnel comprises  the Management Committee, including the Managing Director who exercise significant authority 
and play strategic role in the Company.

2017 2016

 Taka  Taka 
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29.2 Office rent, maintenance & services

Office rent  7,001,479  8,854,374 
Office maintenance  2,875,235  2,414,774 
Office services  272,263  607,613 
Office utilities  1,193,287  1,035,078 
Telephone & telex  516,783  574,495 
IT maintenance  299,565  417,069 

 12,158,611  13,903,402 

30 Deferred tax income/(expense)

Closing balance of deferred tax asset  7,321,050  5,444,869 
Opening balance of deferred tax asset  5,444,869  6,396,248 

 1,876,181  (951,379)

31 Related party transaction

Name of the related party Relationship
 Nature of 

transaction 

Closing 
balance as on 

31.12.2016

Transacton 
during year

Closing 
balance as on 

31.12.2017

IDLC Finance Limited Parent company
 Loan  260,800,001  969,549,692  1,230,349,693 

 FDR  37,950,000  5,150,000  32,800,000 

IDLC Securities Limited 
Subsidiary to Parent 

company
 Loan 100000000  100,000,000  200,000,000 

32 Number of employees

The number of employees for the whole year (31 December 2017) who received a total remuneration of Tk  36,000 or 
above were 31 which was 29 on 31 December 2016.

33 Date of authorisation

The Board of director has authorised these financial statements for issue on 14 February 2018.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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Matiul Islam Nowshad CMgr, FCMI 
Independent Director & Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

It is with immense pleasure that the Board of IDLC Asset 
Management Limited (IDLC AML) presents the Directors’ 
Report, the audited financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended December 31, 2017 and the Auditor’s Report 
thereon in compliance with the Companies Act, 1994, and the 
guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission.

IDLC Asset Management Limited (IDLC AML) is the newest 
addition to IDLC’s capital market subsidiaries and started its 
journey in 2016. IDLC AML is committed to providing high 
quality and fundamentals driven investment management 
service to its customers, both institutional and individual, 
through managing various specific purpose funds. 

Market and Industry Overview

Asset management industry is still at a nascent stage in 
Bangladesh. The primary business of the industry is to mobilize 
funds from institutions and individuals and manage the asset to 
generate superior risk adjusted return. At present, mutual funds 
and alternative investment options are the main investment 
vehicles available to the industry. The industry is run mainly in 
compliance of Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission 
(Mutual Fund) Rules, 2001.

After the market correction in 2010, equity market went through 
a prolonged downturn and volatility.  Institutions with high 
capital market exposure but low understanding of risk underwent 
corrosion in investments in own portfolio. Rising negative equity 
from margin loan accounts crippled the institutions’ capacity 
to go for fresh investments and recover performance. At the 
same time, individual investors with poor understanding about 
the fundamentals of investment watched their investment 
evaporate in market correction. 

However, market stabilized in last couple of years. Notable 
improvements have been observed, strong regulatory oversight 
minimized malpractices, and institutions realized the need for 
professional approach to capital market investment. General 
investors also came to appreciate the value of fundamentals 
driven investments. The qualitative change in market environment 
and participants’ mindset enforced a stability in the market. At the 
same time, quantitative improvements energized the market as 
new quality issues joined the market, expanding market depth and 
breadth. Additionally, change in global macro environment set 
foreign portfolio managers on a search for return in emerging and 
frontier economies. Bangladesh, being one of the fastest growing 
economy on the world, supported by favorable demographic is 
at the top of global investors’ watch list. Resultantly, huge flow of 
foreign portfolio investment entered the market in recent years.

After passing a long consolidation period, the capital market 
is now appeared to have stabilized. Because of the structural 
improvement in the market and investors’ growing awareness 
in professional approach to investment, the demand for 
professional asset management services is to surge. We believe, 
with IDLC group’s brand recognition, technology and process at 
our disposal, coupled with strong presence of IDLC Investments 
Limited and IDLC Securities Limited in their respective business 
line, pivoting towards the asset management industry to meet 
the rising demand of such services is the natural course for us. 

Currently, the industry is dominated by government owned ICB 
and a handful of private players. There are 33 open end mutual 
funds and 36 closed end mutual funds currently operating in the 
market. The size of total Asset under Management (AUM) was 
approximately BDT 139.9 bn as of December 2017. The industry 
is still focused on institutional clients. There has not yet been 
any significant effort to mobilize the savings of individuals to 
help them achieve their financial goals. IDLC AML would aim at 
popularizing mutual fund for retail investors. The company is fully 
committed to invest in people and process to develop products 
with game changing features, to deploy sales and marketing 
network that would define industry standards, and to bring 
about a complete customer care setup, always ready to go extra 
miles to serve the customers. We believe IDLC AML would be 
able to generate superior return on the asset under management 
by deploying its fundamental analysis driven strategy that has 
proven to be spectacularly successful in managing IDLC’s own 
capital market investments. 

Directors’ Report  
to the Shareholders of IDLC Asset Management Limited



Operational Milestones 

We are very pleased to inform you that IDLC AML has continued 
the strong start in its business with encouraging performance 
in the year 2017. The company has been progressing in line 
with its long-term vision of being the country’s no. 1 asset 
management company in terms of investor’s trust and assets 
under management.   Major milestones achieved in 2017 are as 
follows:

	 Launch of first open end mutual fund: In May 2017, 
IDLCAML successfully launched its first open end mutual 
fund namely ‘IDLC Balanced Fund’ with an initial fund size of 
BDT 500.0mn. The AUM of ‘IDLC Balanced Fund’ increased 
to BDT 977.6mn by December, 2017.

	 Zero Exit Load: IDLCAML has first introduced “no exit load” 
for the investors of IDLC Mutual Fund. Now the investors 
can buy and sell the units of IDLC Mutual Fund at weekly 
disclosed NAV / unit having no exit fee which eventually 
maximize their sale proceeds.

	 Launch of Digital Platform for the investors: Another 
milestone that IDLCAML has achieved in 2017 is the launch 
of Digital Platform for the investors, the first of its kind in 
the industry. The Digital Platform will facilitate the investors 
to purchase and surrender their mutual fund units and see 
their investment status online from anywhere. 

Overview of Financial Performance

IDLCAML, which became profitable from the very first year of its 
operation, has succeeded to grow its bottom-line by 2.8 times 
on the second year. The company has generated an operational 
revenue of BDT 101.9mn in 2017. Of the total operational 
revenue, 53.8% came from portfolio management fee, 32.8% 
came from investment income and the rest of 13.4% came from 
Management fee from mutual fund. 

After accounting for operational expenses, the company 
managed to book a pretax profit of BDT 51.3mn. After deducting 
taxes payable to government exchequer, IDLC AML netted an 
after tax profit of BDT 39.1mn. In 2017, the company’s ROE stood 
at 30.1% and ROA stood at 25.6%. 

In BDT million

Particulars 2017 2016

Operational revenue 101.9 19.9

Profit before tax 51.2 15.3

Net profit after tax 39.1 10.4

Total Assets 186.5 119

Total shareholders’ equity 149.5 110.4

Roadmap to 2018

2018 will be a year to further strengthen our foothold in asset 
management industry through enhancing our client base 
with more diverse investment product offerings and enriching 
our customers’ experience with more convenient investment 
solutions. Our focus for this year would be:

	 Launching of “IDLC Growth Fund”. BSEC has already 
approved the prospectus of “IDLC Growth Fund” and public 
subscription of this mutual fund will commence within the 
first quarter of this year. IDLCAML is also planning to launch 
series of open end mutual funds to cater different types of 
investors’ needs, subject to regulatory approval.

	 Launching Systematic Investment Plan (SIP) to facilitate 
investors to make their investment plan more simple, 
convenient and disciplined

	 Recruiting and continuing to develop highly skilled human 
resources to further strengthen the IDLC AML team

	 Developing and deploying advanced technology to ensure 
smooth operations and to facilitate the realization of the 
vision of IDLC AML

	 Devising a customer care system that delivers the highest 
level of service and satisfaction to all current and potential 
clients.

	 Constructing an extensive sales, distribution and marketing 
channel to broaden the customer base 

Books of accounts

At IDLC Asset Management Limited, proper books of accounts 
have been maintained. The appropriate accounting policies 
have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable 
and prudent judgment. International Accounting Standards 
(IAS)/ Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)/ International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)/ Bangladesh Financial 
Reporting Standards (BFRS), as applicable in Bangladesh, have 
been followed in the preparation of the financial statements and 
any departure there-from has been adequately disclosed. The 
financial statements prepared by the management of IDLC Asset 
Management Limited present fairly its state of affairs, cash flows 
and changes in the shareholders’ equity.

Internal control

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been 
effectively implemented and monitored.

Management Fee fromMutual Fund

Income from Investment

Operational Revenue Breakdown 2017

Portfolio Management Fee

13.40%

32.80%

53.80%
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Distribution of profit for 2017

The Company reported a profit after tax of BDT 39.1mn in the 
year 2017. Considering Company's investment opportunities 
and growth potentials and comparative cost benefit analysis 
of paying out dividend and overall better tax management, the 
board of IDLC Asset Management Limited decided not to declare 
any dividend to the shareholders of the Company for 2017.

Appointment of auditors

In terms of Article 102 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, the Company shall, at each Annual General Meeting 
(AGM), appoint an auditor or auditors to hold office until the 
next AGM. The shareholders of IDLC Finance Limited at its 30th 
meeting appointed A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
as the group auditors for the company and its subsidiaries 
as well for 2017. Accordingly, the auditors of the Company, A. 
Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed their 
audit of the Company. They are eligible for re-appointment as 
Auditors of the Company for the year 2018 and they have also 
offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board recommends 
to appoint A. Qasem & Co., Chartered Accountants, to the 
shareholders at the AGM as the auditors of the Company for the 
year 2018 at an existing remuneration of BDT 100,000 (Taka one 
lakh only, excluding VAT).

Going concern

There is no significant doubt on IDLC Asset Management 
Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Appreciation

In conclusion, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like 
to thank our loyal clients and honorable shareholders for their 
continued faith and support. I would also like to take this 
opportunity to thank the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission, Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchanges and 
Central Depository Bangladesh Limited who continued to 
remain our partners in growth. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

Sd/-

Matiul Islam Nowshad, CMgr, FCMI 
Chairman 
IDLC Asset Management Limited



Dated, Dhaka
12 February 2018    

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
of IDLC Asset Management Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IDLC Asset Management Limited which comprises the Statement of Financial 
Position as at 31 December 2017, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Bangladesh 
Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS), the Companies Act, 1994 and applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of  the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of IDLC Asset Management Limited as 
at 31 December 2017, and its financial performaces and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial 
Rrporting Standards and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

(i)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(ii)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our 
examination of those books;

(iii)	 The Company's statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement 
with the books of account and returns; and

(iv)	 The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.
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IDLC Asset Management Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2017

Particulars Notes
December 31

2017 2016

ASSETS

Non Current Assets  12,458,004  2,351,877 

Property, plant and equipment 4  8,052,476  1,445,866 

Intangible assets 5  3,644,804  -   

Deferred tax asset 6  760,724  906,011 

Current Assets  174,008,248  116,639,029 

Investment in marketable securities 7  96,320,769  44,030,956 

Advance, deposits & prepayments  -    1,509,960 

Accounts receivables 8  4,767,523  752,290 

Advance income tax 9  8,159,886  469,822 

Cash and cash equivalents 10  64,760,070  69,876,001 

Total Assets  186,466,252  118,990,906 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity  149,514,661  110,427,563 

Share Capital 11  100,000,000  100,000,000 

Retained Earnings  49,514,661  10,427,563 

Non Current Liabilities  3,631,925  2,698,488 

Payable for gratuity 12  3,631,925  2,698,488 

Current Liabilities  33,319,666  5,864,855 

Provision for audit fees  115,000  43,125 

Provision for Expenses 13  15,404,666  21,730 

Provision for Income tax 14  17,800,000  5,800,000 

Total Equity  and Liabilities  186,466,252  118,990,906 

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Dated, Dhaka
12 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 



Particulars Notes
December 31

2017 2016

Operating Income (a)  101,897,903  19,877,073 

Portfolio Management Fee  54,835,969  17,267,948 

Management Fee from Mutual Fund 15  13,655,430  -   

Income from Investment 16  33,406,504  2,609,125 

Operating Expenses (b)  53,696,641  9,830,033 

General & administrative expenses 17  51,843,222  9,777,751 

Depreciation & amortization expenses 4 & 5  1,853,419  52,282 

Operating Profit for the year/period (a - b)  48,201,262  10,047,039 

Interest Income 3,003,000 5,274,512 

Gain on disposal of Fixed Asset 28,123  -   

Profit before provision for income tax  51,232,385  15,321,551 

Provision for income tax  (12,145,287)  (4,893,989)

Current tax  (12,000,000)  (5,800,000)

Deferred tax (expense)/income 18  (145,287)  906,011 

Net profit for the year/period  39,087,099  10,427,563 

Other comprehensive income  -    -   

Total Comprehensive Income  39,087,099  10,427,563 

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

IDLC Asset Management Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
12 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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IDLC Asset Management Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Particulars Notes
December 31

2017 2016

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit during the year  39,087,099  10,427,563 
Items not involving in movement of cash:
Gain on disposal of Fixed Asset  (28,123)  -   
Decrease/(Increase) in Deferred tax assets  145,287  (906,011)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  1,853,419  52,282 

 41,057,682  9,573,834 

Changes in working capital:
Increase in Account receivables  (4,015,233)  (752,290)
Decrease/(Increase) in Advance, Prepayments & Deposits  1,509,960  (1,509,960)
Increase in Advance Income Tax  (7,690,064)  (469,822)
Decrease in Preliminary expenditure  -  380,000 
Decrease in Pre operating expenses  -  65,675 
Increase in account payables  15,454,811  21,730 
Increase in Deferred Liabilities - Gratuity payable  933,437  2,698,488 
Increase in Provision for income tax  12,000,000  5,800,000 
Decrease in Inter-company payables  -  (402,550)

 18,192,911  5,831,271 
Net cash flow/ (used in) from operating activities (A)  59,250,593  15,405,105 

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (12,318,375)  (1,498,148)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment  241,665  -   
Purchase of Marketable Securities  (52,289,813)  (44,030,956)
Net cash used in investing activities (B)  (64,366,523)  (45,529,104)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceed from issuance of ordinary shares  -    100,000,000 
Net cash flow from financing activities ( C)  -    100,000,000 

D. Net cash (deficit)/surplus for the year (A+B+C)  (5,115,931)  69,876,001 
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year  69,876,001  -   
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year  64,760,070  69,876,001 

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Dated, Dhaka
12 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 



(Amount in Taka)

Particulars Share Capital Retained  
Earnings

Total 
Equity

Balance as at 01 January 2017  100,000,000  10,427,563  110,427,563 

Net Profit for the year  -    39,087,099  39,087,099 

Balance as on 31 December 2017  100,000,000  49,514,661  149,514,661 

(Amount in Taka)

Particulars Share Capital Retained  
Earnings

Total 
Equity

Balance as at 01 January 2016  100,000,000  -    100,000,000 

Net Profit for the year  -    10,427,563  10,427,563 

Balance as at 31 December 2016  100,000,000  10,427,563  110,427,563 

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

IDLC Asset Management Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

Dated, Dhaka
12 February 2018

Sd/-
A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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IDLC Asset Management Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

1	 Company and its activities	

1.1	 Legal status and nature of the company	

	 IDLC Asset Management  Limited was incorporated in Bangladesh on 19 November 2015 vide registration #  C-127068/2015 
as a private company limited by shares, under Companies Act, 1994. The registered office of the Company is situated at 
South Avenue Tower (5th Floor), Unit # 502, Road # 3, 7 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan 1, Dhaka. It is a subsidiary Company of IDLC 
Finance Limited that holds 99.99% ownership of the company.

1.2	 Principal activities and nature of operation

	 IDLC Asset Management Limited provides high standard of professional services to its individual and institutional 
clients through mutual funds, portfolio management and other services. The company's principal activities include the 
following:	

	 i. 	 Asset management through mutual funds for retail and institutional clients;

	 ii. 	 Portfolio management services for institutional clients;

	 iii. 	 Alternative investment in private equity, venture capital and other related investment opportunities;	

	 iv. 	 Corporate advisory services, etc.

2.	 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

2.1	 Statement of compliance

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) covering 
Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS), the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations of Bangladesh. 

2.2	 Other regulatory compliance

	 As required, IDLC Asset Management Limited also complies with the applicable provisions of the following major laws/ 
statutes: 

	 -Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987

	 -Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993

	 -Securities and Exchange Commission (Mutual Fund) Rules, 2001 (Amended in 2013)

	 -Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Alternative Investment) Rules, 2015 

	 -The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;

	 -The Income Tax Rules, 1984;

	 -Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881;

	 Other applicable laws and regulations.

2.3	 Basis of measurement

	 These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention in accordance 
with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS).

2.4	 Components of financial statements

	 -Statement of Financial Position

	 -Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

	 -Statement of Changes in Equity

	 -Statement of Cash Flows

	 -Notes to the Financial Statements



2.5	 Functional and presentational currency

	 These financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) which is the functional currency of the company. The 
amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest integer.

2.6	 Use of estimates and judgments

	 The  preparation  of  financial   statements  requires   management  to   make   judgements, estimates  and assumptions that  
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision of accounting estimates is recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

	 In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

Note: 4 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment.
Note: 6 Deferred tax Assets
Note: 8 Accounts receivables

Note: 12 Payable for gratuity
Note: 14 Provision for income tax

2.7	 Going concern

	 The Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the directors 
continue to adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The current credit facilities and adequate 
resources of the company provide sufficient funds to meet the present requirements of its existing businesses and 
operations.

3	 Significant accounting policies

3.1	 Basis of accounting

	 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and after due compliance with the 
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs), the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations.

3.2	 Property, plant and equipment

3.2.1	 Recognition and measurement

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation in compliance with BAS-16: Property Plant 
and Equipment. The cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing 
the assets to its working condition for its intended use. 

3.2.2	 Subsequent costs

	 The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount of the item 
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be 
measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income account as incurred.

3.2.3	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged using straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation rates are as follows:

Nature of Assets Rate of Depreciation
Curtain and carpets 33.33% p.a.
Electrical equipment 20.00% p.a.
Furniture and fixture 12.50% p.a.
Office decoration 20.00% p.a.
Office equipment 20.00% p.a.
IT equipment 20.00% p.a.
Telephone and telex 33.33% p.a.
Motors vehicles 25.00% p.a.

	 Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment is calculated and charged from the date of putting the assets in 
to use irrespective of the value and purchase/ acquisition date of the property, plant and equipment.	
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3.3	 Intangible assets

3.3.1	 Recognition and measurement

	 Intangible assets viz computer software those are acquired by the Company and which have finite useful lives, are measured 
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any.

3.3.2	 Subsequent expenditure

	 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets 
to which it relates. 

3.3.3	 Amortization

	 Amortization is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values 
over their estimated useful lives based on the management's best estimates.

3.4	 Impairment

	 The carrying value of the Company's assets other than inventories, are reviewed at closing date to determine whether there 
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 
loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the profit and loss account.	

3.5	 Financial Instruments

3.5.1	 Financial Assets

	 Financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables and other receivables. The company 
initially recognizes receivable on the date they are originated. All others financial assets are recognized initially on the date 
at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transaction. The company derecognizes a 
financial asset when, and only when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the cash flows from the asset expire 
or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all 
the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.	

3.5.1.1	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits when it has a short maturity of three months or less 
from the date of acquisition.

3.5.2	 Financial Liabilities

	 The company initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction date at which the company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged or cancelled or expired.

	 These are recognised when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain and the settlement of which is 
expected to result in an outflow from the company of resources embodying economic benefits.

3.5.2.1	 Accounts Payable and Other Payables

	 Accounts payable and other payables are recognised when its contractual obligations arising from past events are certain 
and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the group of resources embodying economic benefits.

3.6	 Investment in shares

	 Investments are stated at cost or market value whichever is lower. A security which is not listed at stock exchange as on the 
reporting date then the price is shown at cost.

3.7	 Taxation

3.7.1	 Current tax

	 Provision for income tax is made on the basis of company’s computation based on the best estimate of taxable profit in 
accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 1984.

3.7.2	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is calculated as per Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 12 "Income Taxes". Deferred tax is recognised on 
difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for 
all deductible temporary differences. 



3.8	 Revenue recognition

3.8.1	 Portfolio management fees

	 Portfolio management fees are recognized on the market value of the clients’ portfolio on daily accrual basis and charged 
to clients’ balance on quarterly basis. 

3.8.2	 Dividend income and profit or loss on sale of securities

	 Dividend is accounted for as income when right to receive is established whereas profit or loss arising from the sale of 
securities is accounted for only when the securities are sold/offloaded.	

3.8.3	 Mutual fund management fees

	 As per the Securities and Exchange Commission (Mutual Fund) Rules, 2001, the Fund shall pay a management fee to the 
Asset Management Company – 

	 a.	 2.50 percent per annum of the weekly average NAV up to BDT 5.00 crore (Five crore Taka);	

	 b.	 2.00 percent per annum for additional amount of the weekly average NAV up to BDT 25.00 crore (Twenty Five 		
	 crore Taka) over BDT 5.00 crore (Five crore Taka);

	 c.	 1.50 percent per annum for additional amount of the weekly average NAV up to BDT 50.00 crore (Fifty crore 		
	 Taka) over BDT 25.00 crore (Twenty Five crore Taka); and	

	 d.	 1.00 percent per annum for additional amount of the weekly average NAV over BDT 50.00 crore (Fifty crore Taka), 	
	 accrued and payable quarterly at the end of the period.

3.8.4	 Mutual fund formation fee 

	 As per the Securities and Exchange Commission (Mutual Fund) Rules, 2001, the Fund shall pay Mutual Fund Formation 
fee to the Asset Management Company as mentioned in the published Prospectus of the Fund approved by Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission.

3.8.5	 Mutual fund Pre-scheme formation fee

	 As per BSEC Directive vide ref no.: SEC/CMRRCD/2009 – 193/ 160 dated 28 May 2014, Asset Manager can accrue management 
fees from scheme of the Mutual Fund for the period starting from the registration date of the scheme to pre-trade period  
according to the Rule 65(2).

3.9	 Provision

	 A provision is recognized in the accounts when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, 
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be 
made.

3.10	 Employee benefits

	 IDLC Asset Management Limited maintains  defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees.  Employee gratuity 
plan is considered as defined benefit plan as it meets the recognition criteria. The company's obligation is  to provide 
the agreed benefits to employees as per condition of the fund. The eligibility is determined according to the terms and 
conditions set in the service rules of the company.	

3.11	 Related party disclosure

	 As per Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS) 24: "Related Party Disclosures", parties are considered to be related if one of 
the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis 
at commercial rates with its related parties. Related party disclosures have been given in note 19.

3.12	 Events after the balance sheet date

	 Events after the balance sheet date that provide additional information about the company's position at the balance sheet 
date are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the balance sheet date that are not adjusting event are disclosed 
in the notes when material.
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3.13	 Application of Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BASs):

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with requirement of BFRS and BAS as adopted by The Institute 
of  Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and applicable in Bangladesh. IDLC Asset Management Limited applied 
following BAS and BFRS:

Name of the BAS BAS No. Status

Presentation of Financial Statements 1 Applied

Statements of Cash Flow 7 Applied

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 8 Applied

Events after the Balance Sheet Period 10 Applied

Income Taxes 12 Applied

Property, Plant and Equipment 16 Applied

Revenue 18 Applied

Employee Benefits 19 Applied

Borrowing Costs 23 Applied

Related Party Disclosures 24 Applied

Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 Applied

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 Applied

Intangible Assets 38 Applied

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 39 Not Applied

Name of the BFRS BFRS No. Status

Financial Instruments: Disclosures 7 Applied



31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

4. Property, plant and equipment
Tangible Assets
A. Cost 

Opening balance  1,498,148  -   
Add: Addition during the year  8,435,554  1,498,148 

 9,933,701  1,498,148 
Less: Disposal/Adjustments during the year  (250,000)  -   

 9,683,701  1,498,148 
B. Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance  52,282  -   
Add: Charged during the year  1,615,401  52,282 

 1,667,683  52,282 
Less: Disposal/Adjustments during the year  (36,458)  -   

 1,631,225  52,282 
C. Written down value (A-B)  8,052,476  1,445,866 

 5. Intangible Assets
A. Cost 

Opening balance  -    -   

Add: Addition during the year  3,882,822  -   

 3,882,822  -   

Less: Disposal/Adjustments during the year  -    -   

 3,882,822  -   

B. Accumulated amortization

Opening balance  -    -   

Add: Charged during the year  238,018  -   

 238,018  -   

Less: Disposal/Adjustments during the year  -    -   

 238,018  -   

C. Written down value (A-B)  3,644,804  -   

A schedule of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is given in Annexure-A.

 6. Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asset is arrived at as follows:

Carrying Amount  Tax base (Taxable)/deductible 
temporary 
difference

 Taka  Taka

As on 31 December 2017

Property, plant and equipment  11,697,280  10,238,854  (1,458,427)

Gratuity provision (net of payment)  (3,631,925)  -    3,631,925 

Net deductible temporary difference  2,173,498 

Applicable tax rate 35.00%

Deferred tax - Assets  760,724 
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Carrying Amount  Tax base (Taxable)/deductible 
temporary 
difference Taka  Taka

As on 31 December 2016

Property, plant and equipment  1,445,865  1,335,981  (109,884)

Gratuity provision (net of payment)  (2,698,488)  -    2,698,488 

Net deductible temporary difference  2,588,604 

Applicable tax rate 35.00%

Deferred tax - Assets  906,011 

7. Investment in marketable securities 
Investment in available-for-sale securities  (Note: 7.1)  96,080,769  39,030,956 

Investment in Right Share subscription  (Note: 7.2)  240,000  -   

Investment in Initial Public Offering  (Note: 7.3)  -    5,000,000 

 96,320,769  44,030,956 

7.1 Investment in available-for-sale securities

Sector-wise details of marketable securities holding position is given below:

 Name of industry 
 Cost price as on 

31.12.2017 
 Market price as on 

31.12.2017 
 Cost price as on 

31.12.2016 
 Market price as on 

31.12.2016 
Bank  39,918,404  46,074,400  8,436,149  8,697,100 

Telecommunication  20,082,526  21,186,000  6,152,447  6,534,300 

Pharmaceuticals & Chemicals  26,894,538  29,003,685  9,987,589  9,886,120 

Fuel & Power  -    -    4,158,871  4,186,000 

Textile  4,378,178  4,390,000  4,186,448  4,532,500 

Information Technology  979,680  2,454,224  -    -   

Tannery  -    -    100,630  511,200 

Engineering  3,827,443  4,495,315  6,008,821  6,297,287 

 96,080,769  107,603,624  39,030,956  40,644,507 

All investment in marketable securities are valued on aggregate portfolio basis, at the lower of cost and market value, at the 
balance sheet date.

On balance sheet date, the aggregate portfolio value at cost price was BDT. 96,080,769 and at market price was BDT. 107,603,624, 
therefore if the reporting entity was recognized the unrealized gain on portfolio then it would recognize BDT. 11,522,855 in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. But as per FID circular No. 08 dated 3 August 2002 of Bangladesh 
Bank (The Central Bank), IDLC Finance Limited, the Parent Company of reporting entity, recognizes its aggregate portfolio on 
cost value and no unrealized gain is recognized. So, the reporting entity as a wholly owned subsidiary of the IDLC Finance 
Limited, follows the similar accounting policy for recognizing the investment in securities listed in both stock exchanges.

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 

7.2 Investment in Rights Share subscription  240,000  -   

IDLC Asset Management Limited subcribed for 12,000 rights shares at Taka 20 (Taka 10 premium) of IFAD AUTOS Limited 
as of 31 December 2017.

7.3 Investment in Initial Public Offering  -    5,000,000 

IDLC Asset Management Limited applied for 500,000 ordinary shares at Taka 10 (face value) of Pacific Denims Limited as of 
31 December 2016.



8. Accounts receivables

Interest Receivable (FDR) 617,261 752,290 

Mutual Fund Management Fees Receivable 3,234,343  -   

Receivable from IDLC Balanced Fund 598,683  -   

Receivable from IDLC Growth Fund 133,410  -   

Cash Dividend Receivable 183,826  -   

 4,767,523  752,290 

9. Advance income tax
Advance corporate income tax  7,027,771  -   

Tax deducted at source  1,132,115  469,822 

 8,159,886  469,822 

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at Bank  (Note: 10.1)  14,196,784  19,088,501 

Fixed Deposit Receipt                             (Note: 10.2)  50,563,286  50,787,500 

 64,760,070  69,876,001 

10.1 Cash at Bank 

Name of the Bank Branch  A/C No  Type

BRAC Bank Limited Bijoy Nagar 1532203891815001 CA  13,373,505  -   

Standard Chartered Bank Gulshan 02-1307951-01 STD  52,049  -   

NRB Bank Limited Principal 1011030069892 SND  771,229  -   

NRB Bank Limited Banani  1022010036414 CD  -    19,088,501 

 14,196,784  19,088,501 

10.2 Fixed Deposit Receipt                            

Institution Branch  A/C No
Term 

Months

IDLC Finance Limited

Gulshan
10552230472901 3  20,000,000  -   

10552230472902 3  10,000,000  -   

Dilkusha
10252230472905 3  20,563,286  -   

10252230472903 3  -    50,787,500 

 50,563,286  50,787,500 

11. Share capital

Authorized Capital

25,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each  250,000,000  250,000,000 

Issued, subscribed & paid up capital  100,000,000  100,000,000 

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of Taka 100,000,000 is divided into 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10 each. 
Details are as follows:

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 



364

REPORTS & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -  
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

IDLC Finance Limited

9,999,999 shares of Taka 10 each fully paid up  99,999,990  99,999,990 

Mr. Syed Javed Noor

1 share of Taka 10 fully paid up  10  -   

Ms. Bilquis Jahan

1 share of Taka 10 fully paid up  -    10 

 100,000,000  100,000,000 

12. Payable for gratuity

Opening Balance  2,698,488  1,609,097 
Charge during the period  933,437  1,089,391 

 3,631,925  2,698,488 

13. Provision for Expenses

Salary and allowance  12,689,950  -   
Office maintenance  68,035  -   
Utilities  40,965  -   
Professional fees  285,000  21,730 
CS Infotech Limited  790,716  -   
Foreign Training  1,500,000  -   
Car maintenance and others  30,000  -   

 15,404,666  21,730 

14. Provision for Income tax
Opening balance  5,800,000  -   

Add: Charged during the year  12,000,000  5,800,000 

 17,800,000  5,800,000 

2017 2016
 Taka  Taka 

15. Management Fee from Mutual Fund

Mutual Fund Formation fees  5,000,000  -   
Mutual Fund Management fees  5,455,430  -   
Mutual Fund Pre Scheme Formation fees  3,200,000  -   

 13,655,430 

16. Income from Investment

Capital gain on investments  31,480,227  2,521,125 

Dividend income from marketable securities  1,926,277  88,000 

 33,406,504  2,609,125 

 17. General and administrative expenses

Salary and allowances  (Note: 17.1)  33,753,329  7,577,376 
Statutory audit fees  115,000  129,375 
Preliminary expenses  -    380,000 
Renewal and registration  185,645  163,780 
Motor vehicle expenses  605,471  72,445 
Entertainment  216,262  32,219 
Postage, stamp & telecommunication etc.  81,204  22,990 
Printing & stationery  933,295  -   
Advertisement and Promotional expenses  8,759,213  -   

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

 Taka  Taka 



2017 2016

 Taka  Taka 

Director's remuneration  166,750  -   
Books and periodicals  23,120  -   
Donations and subscriptions  50,000  -   
Consultancy fees  576,799  -   
Training expenses  1,917,762  -   
Bank charges  83,027  -   
CDBL charges  197,174  -   
Repair and maintenance  151,975  -   
Office rent, maintenance & service, etc. (Note:17.2)  4,027,196  1,399,566 

 51,843,222  9,777,751 

 17.1 Salary and allowances

Salary and allowances  31,986,136  6,207,102 

Provident Fund (Company's Contribution)  833,756  280,883 

Gratuity  933,437  1,089,391 

 33,753,329  7,577,376 

Salaries and allowances include the compensation of the key Management Committee, including the Managing Director 
who exercise significant authority and play strategic role in the Company. During 2017, key management compensation 
was BDT. 10,648,073 (2016: BDT. 4,163,971).

17.2 Office rent, maintenance & service, etc.

Office rent  2,586,800  1,259,238 

Office maintenance  1,087,309  58,994 

Office utility  352,245  57,094 

Telephone & telex  841  24,240 

 4,027,196  1,399,566 

18. Deferred tax (expense)/income

Closing balance of deferred tax asset  760,724  906,011 

Opening balance of deferred tax asset  906,011  -   

 (145,287)  906,011 

19. Related party transaction

Name of the related party Relationship
Nature of 

transaction
Closing balance as 

on 31.12.2017
Closing balance as 

on 31.12.2016

IDLC Finance Limited Parent company FDR 50,563,286 50,787,500

20. Number of employees

The number of employees for the whole year who received a total remuneration of Taka  36,000 or above were 16 which 
was 7 on 31 December 2016.

21. Date of authorisation

The Board of director has authorised these financial statements for issue on 12 February 2018.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Managing Director 

Sd/-
Director

Sd/-
Company Secretary 
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Annual Report Review Checklist
Particulars No.

Corporate Objectives, Values & Structure 
Clarity and presentation:
•    Vision and Mission 14

•    Overall strategic objectives 14, 154

•    Core values and code of conduct/ethical principles 14

•    Profile of the Company 244

•    Director’s profiles and their representation on Board of other companies & Organization Chart 34, 112

Management Report and analysis including Director’s Report / Chairman’s Review/CEO’s Review etc.

•     A general review of the performance of the company 22-28, 205-211

•    Description of the performance of the various activities / products / segments of the company and its 
group companies during the period under review. (Weightage to be given for pictorial / graphical / tabular 
presentations used for this purpose)

23, 26-28, 133-151, 
206-210

•    A brief summary of the Business and other Risks facing the organization and steps  taken to effectively 
manage such risks

54-81

•    A general review of the future prospects/outlook. 24, 27-28

•    Information on how the company contributed to its responsibilities towards the staff (including health & 
safety)

113-116

•   Information on company's contribution to the national exchequer & to the economy 110, 210

Sustainability Reporting

•    Social Responsibility Initiatives ( CSR) 123-125

•    Environment related Initiatives 130-132

•    Environmental & Social Obligation 123-132

•    Integrated Reporting 10, 373

Appropriateness of Disclosure of Accounting policies and General Disclosure

•    Disclosure of adequate and properly worded accounting policies relevant to Assets, liabilities, Income and 
expenditure in line with best reporting standards.

244-257

•    Any Specific accounting policies 244

•    Impairment of Assets 252

•    Changes in accounting policies/Changes in accounting estimates            248

•    Accounting policy on subsidiaries (if there is no any subsidiary, full marks should be granted) 248

Segment Information

•    Comprehensive segment related information bifurcating Segment revenue, segment results and segment 
capital employed

286-287

•    Availability of information regarding different segments and units of the entity as well as non-segmental 
entities/units

286-287

•    Segment analysis of

•    Segment Revenue 286-287

•    Segment Results 286-287

•    Turnover 286-287

•    Operating profit 286-287

•    Carrying amount of Net Segment assets 286-287

Financial Statements (Including Formats)

•    Disclosures of all contingencies and commitments 281-282
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Particulars No.

•    Comprehensive related party disclosures 289-291

•    Disclosures of Remuneration & Facilities provided to Directors & CEO       285

•    Statement of Financial Position / Balance Sheet and relevant schedules 237, 305, 331, 352

•    Income Statement / Profit and Loss Account and relevant schedules 239, 306, 332, 353

•    Statement of Changes in Equity / Reserves & Surplus Schedule       241, 308, 334, 355

•    Disclosure of Types of Share Capital  229, 237

•    Statement of Cash Flow   240, 307, 333, 354

•    Consolidated Financial Statement (CFS)                                                                                          229-235

•    Extent of compliance with the core IAS/IFRS or equivalent National Standards     254

•    Disclosures / Contents of Notes to Accounts 244, 309, 335, 356

Information about Corporate Governance    

•    Board of Directors, Chairman and CEO   34, 165, 168

•     Audit Committee (Composition, role, meetings, attendance, etc.) Internal Control  & Risk Management 177

•    Ethics and Compliance 182

 •    Remuneration and other Committees of Board     114, 187

 •    Human Capital 111

•    Communication to Shareholders & Stakeholders 
          -   Information available on website
          -   Other information
          -  Information available on website
          -   Information available on website
          -   Other information

124, 186

          -  Other information
          -   Information available on website
          -   Other information

124, 157, 186

•    Management Review And Responsibility 166

•    Disclosure by Board of Directors or audit Committee on evolution of Quarterly Reports 202, 209

•    Any other investor friendly information 190

Risk Management & Control Environment

•    Description of the Risk Management Framework 54-81

•    Risk Mitigation Methodology 54-81

•    Disclosure of Risk Reporting 65

Stakeholders Information

•    Distribution of shareholding (Number of shares as well as category wise, e.g Promoter group, FII etc) 15

•    Shares held by Directors/Executives and relatives of Directors/Executives 212, 289

•    Redressal of investors' complaints 184

Graphical/ Pictorial Data:       

•    Earnings per Share   97

•    Net Assets  99-100

•    Stock Performance 99-100

•    Shareholders’ Funds 97

•    Return on Shareholders Fund  91

Horizontal/Vertical Analysis including following.

 Operating Performance (Income Statement) 102, 104



Particulars No.

•    Total Revenue 102, 104

•    Operating profit 102, 104

•    Profit Before Tax 102, 104

•    Profit after Tax 102, 104

•    EPS 102, 104

Statement of Financial Position ( Balance Sheet) 

•    Shareholders Fund 101, 103

•    Property Plant & Equipment 101, 103

•    Net Current Assets 101, 103

•    Long Term Liabilities/Current Liabilities 101, 103

Profitability/Dividends/ Performance and Liquidity Ratios

•    Net Interest income Ratio 99-100

•    Profit before provisions and Tax 99-100

•    Price earning ratio                             99

•    Capital Adequacy Ratios    109

•    Return on Capital Employed 99-100

•    Debt Equity Ratio 99-100

Statement of Value Added and Its Distribution

•    Government as Taxes 106

•    Shareholders as dividend 106

•    Employees as bonus/remuneration 106

•    Retained by the entity 106

•    Market share information of the Company’s product/services 107

•    Economic value added 108

Presentation of Financial Statements

•    Quality of the Report/ Layout of Contents Qualitative

•    Cover and printing including the theme on the cover page Qualitative

•    Appropriateness and effectiveness of photographs and their relevance Qualitative

•    Effectiveness of Charts and Graphs Qualitative

•    Clarity, simplicity and lucidity in presentation of Financial Statements Qualitative

Timeliness in issuing Financial Statements and holding AGMs

•    3 months time to produce the Annual Report and hold AGM are considered reasonable for full marks AGM on March 29, 2018

•    Delay after the initial period of 3 months -deduction of 2 marks is to be made for each month

•    If the period is over 6 months – no marks shall be awarded

Additional Disclosures

•    Sustainability Development Reporting
Separate report 

published
•    LEED Certification Gold under Commercial Interior 19, 132

•    Value Creation Process 32

•    Business Model 30

•    Stakeholder and Materiality 8, 124

•    Human Resource Accounting 115
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DISCLOSURES, CHECKLISTS & 
OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION

Particulars No.

•    Strategy and Resource Allocation 154

•    Custodial Service 199

•    Corporate Governance Certificate 214

Specific Areas for Banking Sector

Disclosure of Ratings given by various rating agencies for the Bank and for its Instruments issued by /of Bank. 
For eg. FD, CD, Tier I and Tier II Bonds 

10

Details of Advances portfolio Classification wise as per the direction issued by the central bank of the respective countries 268

Disclosure for Non Performing assets:

 •    Movements in NPA 196

 •    Movement of Provisions made against NPA 196

Maturity Pattern of Key Assets and Liabilities (ALM) 197

Classification and valuation of investments as per regulatory guidelines/Accounting Standards
244, 251-252, 267-

268
Business Ratio/Information:

 •    Statutory Liquidity Reserve (Ratio) 258

 •    Net interest income as a percentage of working funds / Operating cost - Efficiency  ratio 99-100

 •    Return on Average Asset 99-100

 •    Cost/ Income ratio 91

 •    Net Asset Value Per Share 99

  •    Profit per employee 115

 •    Capital Adequacy ratio 109

 •    Cost of Funds 105

 •    Cash Reserve Ratio / Liquid Asset ratio 258

 •    Dividend Cover ratio 100, 106

 •    Gross Non-Performing assets to gross advances / Non-Performing Loans (Assets) to Total Loans (Assets) 95

Details of credit concentration / Sector vise exposures 65

The break-up of “Provisions and contingencies’ included in the Profit and Loss Account 269

Disclosure under regulatory guidelines 204

Details of Non-Statutory investment portfolio 261-262

Disclosure in respect of assets given on operating & finance lease 249

Disclosures for derivative investments N/A

Bank's Network : List of Centers or Branches 383



Corporate Governance Disclosure Checklist
Page Number

l. BOARD OF DIRECTORS, CHAIRMAN AND CEO 

1.1 Company's policy on appointment of directors disclosed. 165

1.2
Adequate representation of non executive directors i.e. one third of the board, subject to a minimum 
of two 

166

1.3
At least one independent director on the board and disclosure / affirmation of the board on such 
director's independence. 

166

1.4 Chairman to be independent of CEO 168

1.5
Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board appropriately defined and disclosed. Disclosure of 
independence of Non Executive Directors 

168

1.6 Existence of a scheme for annual appraisal of the boards performance and disclosure of the same. 169

1.7 Disclosure of policy on annual evaluation of the CEO by the Board. 170

1.8
Disclosure of policy on training (including details of the continuing training program) of directors and 
type and nature of training courses organized for directors during the year Existence of a scheme for 
annual appraisal of the boards performance 

170

1.9
At least one director having thorough knowledge and expertise in finance and accounting to provide 
guidance in the matters applicable to accounting and auditing standards to ensure reliable financial 
reporting. 

170

1.10
Disclosure of number of meetings of the board and participation of each director (at least 4 meetings 
are required to be held) 

213

1.11
Directors issue a report on compliance with best practices on Corporate Governance that is reviewed 
by the external auditors 

204, 214

2 VISION / MISSION AND STRATEGY 

2.1 Company's vision / mission statements are approved by the board and disclosed in the annual report. 174

2.2 Identification of business objectives and areas of business focus disclosed 124, 154

2.3 General description of strategies to achieve the company's business objectives 124, 154

3 AUDIT COMMITTEES 

3.1 Appointment and Composition 

3.1.1 
Whether the Audit Committee Chairman is an independent Non - Executive Director and 
Professionally Qualified 

177

3.1.2 
Whether it has specific terms of reference and whether it is empowered to investigate / question 
employees and retain external counsel 

177

3.1.3 More than two thirds of the members are to be Non Executive Directors 178

3.1.4
All members of the audit committee to be suitably qualified and at least one member to have expert 
knowledge of finance and accounting. 

178

3.1.5 Head of internal audit to have direct access to audit committee 178

3.1.6 
The committee to meet at least four times a year and the number of meetings and attendance by 
individual members disclosed in the annual report. 

213

3.2 Objectives & Activities 

3.2.2 
Statement on Audit Committee's review to ensure that internal controls are well conceived properly 
administered and satisfactorily monitored 

179

3.2.3 
Statement to indicate audit committees role in ensuring compliance with Laws, Regulations and 
timely settlements of Statutory dues 

179

3.2.4 Statement of Audit committee involvement in the review of the external audit function 179

* Ensure effective coordination of external audit function 179

* Ensure independence of external auditors 179

* To review the external auditors findings in order to be satisfied that appropriate action is being taken 179
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*
Review and approve any non-audit work assigned to the external auditor and ensure that such  work 
does not compromise the independence of the external auditors. 

179

* Recommend external auditor for appointment/ reappointment 179

3.2.5 
Statement on Audit committee involvement in selection of appropriate accounting policies that are 
in line will applicable accounting standards and annual review. 

180

3.2.6 
Statement of Audit Committee involvement in the review and recommend to the board of directors, 
annual and interim financial releases 

180

3.2.7 Reliability of the management information used for such computation 180

4 INTERNAL CONTROL & RISK MANAGEMENT 

4.1 Statement of Director's responsibility to establish appropriate system of internal control 180

4.2
Narrative description of key features of the internal control system and the manner in which the 
system is monitored by the Board, Audit Committee or Senior Management. 

180

4.3 Statement that the Director's have reviewed the adequacy of the system of internal controls 181

4.4 Disclosure of the identification of risks the company is exposed to both internally & externally 181

4.5 Disclosure of the strategies adopted to manage and mitigate the risks 182

5 ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE 

5.1
Disclosure of statement of ethics and values, covering basic principles such as integrity, conflict of 
interest, compliance with laws and regulations etc. 

182

5.2
Dissemination / communication of the statement of ethics & business practices to all directors and 
employees and their acknowledgement of the same 

182

5.3
Board's statement on its commitment to establishing high level of ethics and compliance within the 
organization 

182

5.4
Establishing effective anti-fraud programs and controls, including effective protection of whistle 
blowers, establishing a hot line reporting of irregularities etc. 

184

6 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

6.1 Disclosure of the charter (role and responsibilities) of the committee 184

6.2
Disclosure of the composition of the committee (majority of the committee should be non-executive 
directors, but should also include some executive directors) 

184

6.3
Disclosure of key policies with regard to remuneration of directors, senior management and 
employees 

173, 185

6.4 Disclosure of number of meetings and work performed 185

6.5 Disclosure of Remuneration of directors, chairman, chief executive and senior executives. 185

7 HUMAN CAPITAL

7.1

Disclosure of general description of the policies and practices codified and adopted by the company 
with respect to Human Resource Development and Management, including succession planning, 
merit based recruitment, performance appraisal system, promotion and reward and motivation, 
training and development, grievance management and counseling. 

185

7.2 Organizational Chart 112, 185

8 COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS & STAKEHOLDERS 

8.1
Disclosure of the Company's policy / strategy to facilitate effective communication with shareholders 
and other stake holders 

186

8.2
Disclosure of company's policy on ensuring participation of shareholders in the Annual General 
Meeting and providing reasonable opportunity for the shareholder participation in the AGM. 

187

9 ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL OBLIGATIONS 

9.1
Disclosure of general description of the company's policies and practices relating to social and 
environmental responsibility of the entity 

187

9.2 Disclosure of specific activities undertaken by the entity in pursuance of these policies and practices 188



INTEGRATED REPORTING CHECKLIST
Sl. No. Particulars Page Reference Chapter/Section Reference

1 Elements of an Integrated Report 
1.1 Organizational overview and external environment 

An integrated report should disclose the main activities of the 
organization and the environment in which it operates. 2, 30, 46, 244

IDLC at a Glance, Business Model, 
Operating Context & Risk Management, 
Note 1: Company and its activities

An integrated report should identify the organization's mission and vision, 
and provides essential context by identifying matters such as: 
•    The organization's: 

•     culture, ethics and values 14 Our Philosophies – the Backbone of Our 
Enterprise

•     ownership and operating structure including size of the organization, 
location of its operations) 

15, 383 Shareholding Composition, IDLC's 
Presence

•    principal activities and markets 30, 134, 137, 140, 
142, 143, 145, 148, 

152, 244

Business Model, Business Segment 
Reviews - Overviews, Note 1: Company 
and its activities

•    competitive landscape and market positioning (considering factors 
such as the threat of new competition and substitute products or 
services, the bargaining power of customers and suppliers, and the 
intensity of competitive rivalry) 

49 Market Forces and Competitive 
Landscape

•     position within the value chain 32 Value Creation Process
•    Key quantitative information 
e.g. The number of employees, revenue and number of countries in which 
the organization operates highlighting, in particular, significant changes 
from prior periods 

4, 18, 84-159 Core Highlights, National Footprint, 
Management Discussion and 
Performance Analysis 

•    Significant factors affecting the external environment and the 
organization's response (include  aspects  of  the  legal,  commercial,  
social,  environmental  and political context that affect the organization’s 
ability to create value in the short, medium or long term)

46 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry

Eg:
•    The legitimate needs and interests of key stakeholders 124 Social & Relationship Capital
•     Macro and micro economic conditions, such as economic stability, 

globalization, and industry trends 
22, 25, 47, 48, 205, 
135, 138, 141, 146, 

150, 153

Message from the Chairman - 
Bangladesh economic review, CEO'a 
Reflections, Macroeconomic Aspects 
Shaping the Industry - Economic, 
Suppementary Details, Director's Report, 
Business Segment Review - Influential 
trends shaping the industry, Key 
business trends and our responses

•    Market forces, such as the relative strengths and weaknesses of 
competitors and customer demand 

46, 49, 26 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry, Market Forces and Competitive 
Landscape, CEO's Reflections - Growth 
in Domestic Credit & Deposits

•    The speed and effect of technological change 47, 155 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping 
the Industry - Technological, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Risks & 
Opportunities

•    Societal issues, such as population and demographic changes, human 
rights, health, poverty, collective values and educational systems 

47 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry - Social

•    Environmental challenges, such as climate change, the loss 
of ecosystems, and resource shortages as planetary limits are 
approached 

48 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry - Environmental

•    The legislative and regulatory environment in which the organization 
operates 

48 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry - Legal

•    The political environment in countries where the organization operates 
and other countries that may affect the ability of the organization to 
implement its strategy 

46 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry - Political

1.2 Governance 
An integrated report should show how does the organization's governance structure 
support its ability to create value in the short, medium and long term. 

154, 163 Strategy & Resource Allocation, 
Statement of Corporate Governance

An integrated report needs to provide an insight about how such matters as 
the following are linked to its ability to create value: 
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•    The organization's leadership structure, including the skills and diversity  

(e.g.,   range   of   backgrounds,   gender,   competence   and experience)   
of   those   charged   with   governance   and   whether regulatory   
requirements   influence   the   design   of   the   governance structure

34, 163 Profile of the Board of Directors, 
Statement of Corporate Governance

•    Mandatory and voluntary code of corporate governance adopted by the 
Company.

•    Code of ethical conduct adopted by the Company in relation to ethical 
business.

182 Statement of Corporate Governance - 
Ethics and Compliance

•    Specific processes used to make strategic decisions and to establish and 
monitor the culture of the organization, including its attitude to risk and 
mechanisms for addressing integrity and ethical issues 

•    Particular actions those charged with governance have taken to influence 
and monitor the strategic direction of the organization and its approach 
to risk management 

54, 163 Statement of Risk Management, 
Statement of Corporate Governance

•    How the organization's culture, ethics and values are reflected in its 
use of and effects on the capitals, including its relationships with key 
stakeholders 

90-132, 154, 182 Capitals, Strategy & Resource Allocation, 
Statement of Corporate Governance- 
Ethics and Compliance

•    Whether the organization is implementing governance practices that 
exceed legal requirements / Key Policies 

182 Statement of Corporate Governance- 
Ethics and Compliance

•    The responsibility those charged with governance take for promoting and 
enabling innovation 

188 Statement of Corporate Governance - 
IDLC’s Overall Governance

•    How remuneration and incentives are linked to value creation in the 
short, medium and long term, including how they are linked to the 
organization's use of and effects on the capitals. 

111, 188 Human Capital, Statement of Corporate 
Governance - IDLC’s Overall Governance

1.3 Stakeholder Identification/relationships 
An integrated report should identify its key stakeholders and provide 
insight into the nature and quality of the organization's relationships with 
its key stakeholders, including how and to what extent the organization 
understands, takes into account and responds to their legitimate needs and 
interest. Stakeholders are the groups or individuals that can reasonably be 
expected to be significantly affected by an organization's business activities, 
outputs or outcomes or whose actions can reasonably be expected to 
significantly affect the ability of the organization to create value.

123 Social & Relationship Capital

An entity may disclose the following in their integrated reports in respect of 
stakeholder relationships:
•    How the company has identified its stakeholders. 124 Social & Relationship Capital 

- Stakeholder identification & 
engagement

•    Stakeholder engagement methodology. 124 Social & Relationship Capital 
- Stakeholder identification & 
engagement

•    Identification of material matters of stateholders. 8, 124 Materiality Determination & Reporting 
at IDLC, Social & Relationship 
Capital - Stakeholder identification & 
engagement

•    How the Company has applied such matters. 124 Social & Relationship Capital 
- Stakeholder identification & 
engagement

•    How the stakeholders are engaged in assessing impacts, implications and 
outlook unrespects of Company's business model.

123, 154 Social & Relationship Capital and 
Strategy & Resource Allocation

Capitals 
An integrated report needs to provide insight about the resources and the 
relationships used and affected by the organization, which are referred 
to collectively as the capitals and how the organization interacts with the 
capitals to create value over the short, medium and long term 

32, 30, 90-132, 154 Value Creation Process, Business Model, 
Capitals, Strategy & Resource Allocation

An integrated report need to identify the various forms of capitals which are 
essential for the success of its business operations. 

32, 30 Value Creation Process, Business Model

Eg:
Financial Capital -The pool of funds that is available to the organization for 
use in the production of goods or provsion of services.

90 Financial Capital

Manufacturing Capital -Manufactured physical objects that are available to 
the organization for use in the production of goods and provision of services.

121 Manufactured Capital
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Intellectual Capital -Organizational Knowledge based intangibles. 117 Intellectual Capital
Human Capital -People's competencises, capabilities and experience, and 
their motovations to innovate.

111 Human Capital

Social & Relationship Capital -The institutions and the relationships within 
and between communities, groups of stakeholders and other networks 
and the ability to share information to enhance individual and collective 
wellbeing.

123 Social & Relationship Capital

Natural Capital -All renewable and non-renewable environmental resources 
and processes that provide goods and services that support the past, current 
and future prosperity of the organization.

130 Natural Capital

Note: However an entity can do its own classification of capitals based on 
its business activities. An entity needs to  ensure that it  does not overlook a 
capital that it uses or affects

1.4 Business model 
An integrated report should describe the organization’s business model
An integrated report need to describe the business model, including key: Value Creation Process, Business Model
•    Inputs 30
•    Business activities 33
•    Outputs 33
•    Outcomes 31
Features  that  can  enhance  the  effectiveness  and  readability  of  the 
description of the business model   include:
•    Explicit identification of the key elements of the business model 32, 30
•    A  simple  diagram highlighting  key  elements,  supported  by  a  clear 

explanation of the relevance of those elements to the organization
30

•    Narrative flow that is logical given the particular circumstances of the 
organization

•    Identification  of  critical  stakeholder and other (e.g., raw  material) 
dependencies and important factors affecting the external environment

32, 30, 46 Business Model, Value Creation Process, 
Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry

•    Connection to information covered by other Content Elements, such as 
strategy, risks and opportunities, and performance (including KPls and 
financial considerations, like cost containment and revenues). 

30, 32, 85, 90-132, 
154

Value Creation Process, Business 
Model, Performance Analysis with the 
Management Committee, Capitals, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation

Inputs
An integrated report shows how key inputs relate to the capitals on which 
the organization depends, or that provide a source of differentiation for 
the organization, to the extent they are material to understanding the 
robustness and resilience of the business model. 

30, 32, 156 Value Creation Process, Business Model, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation - What 
makes our business model highly 
adaptable to change

Business activities 
An integrated report describes key business activities. This can include: 
•    How the organization differentiates itself in the market place  (e.g., 

through product differentiation, market segmentation, delivery channels 
and marketing)

32, 156, 157 Business Model - Value Proposition, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation - 
What makes our business model 
highly adaptable to change, Strategy 
formulation and our sources of 
competitive advantage

•    How the organization approaches the need to innovate 157, 158 Strategy & Resource Allocation - How 
we develop and utilize our intellectual 
and human capitals, The role of 
innovation…capitals

•   How the business model has been designed to adapt to change. 156 Strategy & Resource Allocation - What 
makes our business model highly 
adaptable to change

When material, an integrated report discusses the contribution made to the 
organization's long term success by initiatives such as process improvement, 
employee training and relationships management

85, 157, 159 Performance Analysis with the 
Management Committee, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Strategy 
formulation and our sources of 
competitive advantage, Our scope of 
long-term value creation

Outputs
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An integrated report identifies an organization's key products and services. 
There  might  be  other  outputs,  such  as  by-products  and  waste (including  
emissions),  that  need  to  be  discussed  within  the  business model 
disclosure depending on their materiality.

29, 33, 159 Our Range of Products and Services, 
Business Model - Value Proposition (Our 
offerings),Strategy & Resource Allocation 
- Trade-offs we seek to avoid

Outcomes
An integrated report describes key outcomes, including:
•   Both   internal   outcomes (e.g.,   employee   morale, organizational 

reputation,  revenue  and  cash  flows)  and  external outcomes  (e.g., 
customer  satisfaction, tax  payments,  brand  loyalty,  and  social  and 
environmental effects)

31, 85, 90-132, 
133-153

Value Creation Process - Outcomes, 
Performance Analysis with the 
Management Committee, Capitals, 
Business Segment Review

•   Both  positive  outcomes  (i.e.,  those  that  result  in  a  net  increase  in  
the capitals and thereby create value) and negative outcomes (i.e., those  
that  result  in  a  net  decrease  in  the  capitals and  thereby diminish 
value).

158, 159 Strategy & Resource Allocation - 
Interdependencies, complexities and 
trade-offs, Measuring the efficacy of our 
objectives

1.5 Performance 
An integrated report needs to explain the extent to which the organization 
has achieved its strategic objectives for the period and what are its outcomes 
in terms of effects on the capitals? 

25, 85, 90-132 CEO's Reflections, Performance Analysis 
with the Management Committee, 
Capitals

An integrated report should contain qualitative and quantitative information 
about performance that may include matters such as: 
•    Quantitative indicators with respect to targets and risks and opportunities, 

explaining their significance, their implications, and the methods and 
assumptions used in compiling them 

90, 155, 157 Financial Capital, Strategy & Resource 
Allocation - Risks & opportunities, 
Strategy formulation and our sources of 
competitive advantage

•   The  organization’s  effects  (both  positive  and  negative)  on  the capitals, 
including material effects on capitals up and down the value chain 

30, 90-132 Value Creation Process, Capitals

•   The state of key stakeholder relationships and how the organization has 
responded to key stakeholders' legitimate needs and interests 

123, 157 Social & Relationship Capital, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Responses 
to issues raised through stakeholder 
engagement

•   The linkages between past and current performance, and between current 
performance and the organization's outlook. 

25, 85, 90, 135, 
138, 141, 146, 150, 

153

CEO's Reflections, Performance Analysis 
with the Management Committee, 
Financial Capital, Business Segment 
Reviews - Outlook

KPIs  that  combine  financial  measures  with  other  components  (e.g.,  
the ratio of greenhouse gas emissions to sales) or narrative that explains the 
financial  implications  of  significant  effects  on  other  capitals  and other 
causal relationships (e.g., expected revenue growth resulting from efforts to 
enhance human capital) may be used to demonstrate the connectivity of  
financial  performance  with  performance  regarding  other  capitals.  In 
some  cases,  this  may  also  include monetizing  certain  effects  on  the 
capitals (e.g., carbon emissions and water use). 

30, 158, 159 Value Creation Process - narrative, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation - Key 
interdependencies, complexities and 
tradeoffs between capitals, Trade-offs 
we seek to avoid

Include instances where regulations have a significant effect on performance 
(e.g. a constraint on revenues as a result of regulatory rate setting) or the 
organization's non-compliance with laws or regulations may significantly 
affect its operations. 

48, 206, 65, 69 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping 
the Industry - Environmental, Legal, 

Supplementary Details,Directors' 
Report - Capital Markets Review, 

IDLC's Performance, Statement of Risk 
Management - Credit Risk Exposure 
Limit, Operational Risk Management

1.6 Risks, opportunities and internal controls
An integrated report should explain what are the specific risks and 
opportunities that affect the organization's ability to create value over the 
short, medium and long term, and how is the organization dealing with 
them? and effectiveness of the system of internal controls.

135, 138, 141, 146, 
150, 153, 155, 54

Business Segment Review - Risks 
Facing the Business, Outlook, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Risks & 
opportunities, Statement of Risk 
Management

This can include identifying: 
•   The specific source of risks and opportunities, which can be internal, 

external or, commonly, a mix of the two. 
135, 138, 141, 146, 
150, 153, 155, 54

Business Segment Review - Risks 
Facing the Business, Outlook, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Risks & 
opportunities, Statement of Risk 
Management

•    The organization's assessment of the likelihood that the risk or opportunity 
will come to fruition and the magnitude of its effect if it does. 

62 Statement of Risk Management - Risk 
Heat Map
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•   The specific steps being taken to mitigate or manage key risks (e.g: 

Risk Management Framework, Risk Management review process and 
reporting structure) or to create value from key opportunities, including 
the identification of the associated strategic objectives, strategies, 
policies, targets and KPls. 

55, 135, 138, 141, 
146, 150, 153, 155

Statement of Risk Management - 
Integrated Risk Management Approach, 
Business Segment Review - Risks 
Facing the Business, Outlook, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Risks & 
Opportunities

•    Risk Management Report (Which includes details about risk, root course, 
potential impact, response to risk, risk rating)

54 Statement of Risk Management

•    Response on the effectiveness of the internal controls and the board's 
responsibility for the disclosures on internal controls to safeguard 
stakeholder interest.

180, 201 Statement of Corporate Governance 
- Acknowledgment of Directors’ 
responsibility in respect of internal 
control of IDLC, Report of the Audit 
Committee - Review of the activities of 
the Internal Control and Compliance 
Department (ICC)

1.7 Strategy & Resource Allocation 
An integrated report should describe its strategic direction (Where does the 
organization want to go and how does it intend to get there) 

85, 154 Performance Analysis with the 
Management Committee, Strategy & 
Resource Allocation

An integrated report needs to identify: 
•    The organization's short, medium and long term strategic objectives 154 Strategy & Resource Allocation - Goals
•    The strategies it has in place, or intends to implement, to achieve those 

strategic objectives 
85, 89, 157 Performance Analysis with the 

Management Committee - The 
fundamentals of our business strategy, 
Strategy review going forward, Strategy 
& Resource Allocation - Resource 
allocation strategies to meet our 
objectives

•     How the entity has positioned in the wider market. 89, 156, 157 Performance Analysis with the 
Management Committee - Comparison 
with industry benchmarks, Strategy & 
Resource Allocation - Business Model 
adaptability and change requirements, 
Strategy formulation and our sources of 
competitive advantage

•     How the long term strategies relate to current business model. 85, 156, 157 Performance Analysis with the 
Management Committee - The 
fundamentals of our business strategy, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation - 
Business Model adaptability and change 
requirements, Responses to issues raised 
through stakeholder engagement

•     The resource allocation plans it has to implement its strategy 157 Strategy & Resource Allocation - 
Resource allocation strategies to meet 
our objectives

•    How it will measure achievements and target outcomes for the short, 
medium and long term. 

159 Strategy & Resource Allocation - 
Measuring the efficacy of our objectives

This can include describing:
•    The linkage between the organization's Strategy & Resource Allocation 

plans, and the information covered by other Content Elements, including 
how its Strategy & Resource Allocation plans: 

154 Strategy & Resource Allocation

•    relate to the organization's business model, and what changes to that 
business model might be necessary to implement chosen strategies 
to provide an understanding of the organization's ability to adapt to 
change

156  - Business model adaptability and 
change requirements

•    are influenced by/respond to the external environment and the 
identified risks and opportunities affect the capitals, and the risk 
management arrangements related to those capitals 

155  - Highlighted challenges facing our 
company and strategies to counter 
them

•     What differentiates the organization to give it competitive advantage and 
enable it to create value, such as: 

157  - Strategy formulation and our sources 
of competitive advantage

•    the role of innovation 
•    how the organization develops and exploits intellectual capital 
•    the extent to which environmental and social considerations 

have been embedded into the organization's strategy to give it a 
competitive advantage 
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•    Key features and findings of stakeholder engagement that were used in 

formulating its Strategy & Resource Allocation plans. 
155  - Highlighted challenges facing our 

company and strategies to counter 
them

1.8 Outlook 
An integrated report should explain what challenges and uncertainties is 
the organization likely to encounter in pursuing its strategy, and what are 
the potential implications for its business model and future performance? 

22, 25, 46-84, 85, 
90-132, 135, 138, 

141, 142, 143, 146, 
150, 153, 154

Message from the Chairman, CEO's 
Reflections, Operating Context & Risk 
Management, Performance Analysis 
with the Management Committee, 
Capitals, Business Segment Reviews 
- Risks facing the business, Outlook, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation

An integrated report shouId highlight anticipated changes over time and 
provides information on:
•   The organization's expectations about the external environment the 

organization is likely to face in the short, medium and long term 
46, 135, 138, 141, 

146, 150, 153
Operating Context & Risk Management, 
Business Segment Reviews - Risks facing 
the business, Outlook

•  How that will affect the organization 
•  How the organization is currently equipped to respond to the critical 

challenges and uncertainties that are likely to arise. 
156 Strategy & Resource Allocation - 

Business model adaptability and change 
requirements

The discussion of the potential implications, including implications for future 
financial performance may include: 
•     The external environment, and risks and opportunities, with an analysis of 

how these couId affect the achievement of strategic objectives 
46, 155 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 

Industry, Strategy & Resource Allocation 
- Risks & opportunities

•    The  availability,  quality  and  affordability  of  capitals  the  organization  
uses  or  affects (e.g., the continued  availability  of skilled labour or  
natural resources), including how key  relationships  are  managed  and  
why  they  are  important  to  the  organization’s ability to create value 
over time.

30, 158 Value Creation Process - narrative, 
Strategy & Resource Allocation - Key 
interdependencies, complexities and 
tradeoffs between capitals

An integrated report may also provide lead indicators, KPls or objectives, 
relevant information from recognized external sources, and sensitivity 
analyses. If forecasts or projections are included in reporting the organization's 
outlook, a summary of related assumptions is useful. Comparisons of actual 
performance to previously identified targets further enables evaluation of 
the current outlook. 

209 Directors' Report to the Shareholders of 
IDLC Finance Limited - Comparison of 
actual and budgeted performance of 
IDLC Group

Disclosures about an organization's outlook in an integrated report should 
consider the legal or regulatory requirements to which the organization is 
subject. 

10 Integrated Report - Its Scope and 
Boundaries

1.9 Basis of preparation and presentation 
An integrated report should answer the question: How does the organization 
determine what matters to include in the integrated report and how are 
such matters quantified or evaluated? 

8 - 11 Materiality Determination & Reporting at 
IDLC, Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects, Integrated Report - Its Scope 
and Boundaries

An integrated report describes its basis of preparation and presentation, 
including: 
•     A summary of the organization's materiality determination process 8 - 9 Materiality Determination & Reporting at 

IDLC, Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects

•    Brief description of the process used to identify relevant matters, 
evaluate their importance and narrow them down to material matters 

8 - 9 Materiality Determination & Reporting at 
IDLC, Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects

•    Identification of the role of those charged with governance and key 
personnel in the identification and prioritization of material matters. 

11 Integrated Report - Its Scope and 
Boundaries - Responsibility over the 
Integrity of the Integrated Report

•     A description of the reporting boundary and how it has been determined 10 Integrated Report - Its Scope and 
Boundaries

Eg:Include process  used for  identifying  the  reporting  boundary,  
geographic  scope, the  entities  represented in the report and the nature of 
the information provided  for each entity
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•    A summary of the significant frameworks and methods used to quantify 

or evaluate material matters 
9,109, 210 Navigating Through the Material 

Aspects, Integrated Report - Its Scope 
and Boundaries, Directors' Report to the 
shareholders of IDLC Finance Limited-  
Corporate and financial reporting 
framework

(e.g., the applicable financial reporting standards used for compiling 
financial information, a company-defined formula for measuring customer 
satisfaction, or an industry based framework for evaluating risks).

2 Responsibility for an integrated report 
An integrated report shouId include a statement from those charged with 
governance that includes: 

10, 173 Integrated Report - Its Scope and 
Boundaries, Statement of Corporate 
Governance - Directors' report on 
preparation of financial statements and 
corporate governance

•    An acknowledgement of their responsibility to ensure the integrity of the 
integrated report 

11

•    An acknowledgement that they have applied their collective mind to the 
preparation and presentation of the integrated report 

11

•    Their opinion or conclusion about whether the integrated report is 
presented in accordance with the Framework 

11

3 Other Qualitative Characteristics of an Integrated Report 
3.1 Conciseness

An integrated report should be concise.
An integrated report need to include sufficient context to understand the 
organization’s strategy, governance, performance and prospects without 
being burdened with less relevant information

9, 154 Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects, Strategy & Resource Allocation

Eg:
Follows logical structure and includes internal cross-reference as appropriate 
to limit repetition.

9 Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects

Express concepts clearly and in as few words. 9 Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects

Favours plain language over the use of jargon or highly technical 
terminology.
Avoids highly generic disclosures.

3.2 Reliability and completeness 
An integrated report should include all material matters, both positive and 
negative, in a balanced way and without material error 

154, 180 Strategy & Resource Allocation, 
Statement of Corporate Governance- 
Acknowledgment of directors’ 
responsibility in respect of internal 
control of IDLC

The organization achieves the reliability and completeness through,
Eg:
•    Selection of presentation formats that are not likely to unduly or 

inappropriately influence assessments made on the basis of intergrated 
report.

9 Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects

•     Giving equal conseration to both increases and decreases in the capitals, 
both strengths and weaknesses of the organization, both positive and 
negative performance etc.

84 Management Discussion and Analysis

When information includes estimates, this is clearly communicated and the 
nature of limitations of the estimation process are explained.

46 Macroeconomic Aspects Shaping the 
Industry

3.3 Consistency and comparability 
The information in an integrated report should be presented: 
•    On a basis that is consistent over time 99-105, 173 Financial Capital - Key Operating 

& Financial Highlights, Highlights 
as Required by Bangladesh Bank, 
Statement of corporate governance - 
Directors’ report on preparation and 
presentation of financial statements and 
corporate governance
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Sl. No. Particulars Page Reference Chapter/Section Reference
•     In a way that enables comparison with other organizations to the extent 

it is material to the organization's own ability to create value over time
9, 99-105 Navigating Through the Material 

Aspects, Integrated Report - Its Scope 
and Boundaries, Financial Capital - Key 
Operating & Financial Highlights, 
Highlights as Required by Bangladesh 
Bank

•     Presenting  information  in  the  form  of  ratios  (e.g.,  research  
expenditure  as  a percentage of sales, or carbon intensity measures 
such as emissions per unit of output)

5, 90-105 Core Highlights, 2017; Financial Capital 
- Discussion of Key Financial Matters, 
Key Operating & Financial Highlights, 
Highlights as Required by Bangladesh 
Bank

•     Reporting  quantitative  indicators  commonly  used  by  other  
organizations  with similar activities, particularly when standardized 
definitions are stipulated by an independent organization (e.g., an 
industry body).

•    Reporting policies are followed consistently from one period to other 
unless a change is needed to improve the quality of information 
reported.

99-105, 173 Financial Capital - Key Operating 
& Financial Highlights, Highlights 
as Required by Bangladesh Bank, 
Statement of Corporate Governance 
- Directors’ report on preparation and 
presentation of financial statements and 
corporate governance

•      Reporting the same KPIs if they continue to be material across 
reporting period.

3.4 Connectivity of information 
An integrated report should show a holistic picture of the combination, 
interrelatedness and dependencies between the factors that affect the 
organization's ability to create value over time. 

30 Value Creation Process

Eg: Connectivity between
•     Capitals 30, 158 Value Creation Process - narrative, 

Strategy & Resource Allocation - Key 
interdependencies, complexities & 
tradeoffs between capitals

•     Content elements 9 Navigating Through the Material 
Aspects

  •     Past, Present & Future 22, 25, 85, 99-105,  
205

Message from the Chairman, CEO's 
Reflections, Performance Analysis with 
the Management Committee, Financial 
Capital - Key Operating & Financial 
Highlights, Highlights as Required by 
Bangladesh Bank, Directors' Report 
to the Shareholders of IDLC Finance 
Limited,

 •     Finance and other information 159 Strategy & Resource Allocation - 
Tradeoffs we seek to avoid

3.5 Materiality 
An integrated report should disclose information about matters that 
substantively affect the organization's ability to create value over the short, 
medium and long term 

8, 32 Materiality Determination and Reporting 
at IDLC, Value Creation Process - 
narrative

3.6 Assurance on the Report 
•     The policy and practice relating to seeking assurance on the report 11, 204 External Assurances, Statement of 

Directors’ Responsibility for Internal 
Control, Financial Reporting and 
Corporate Governance

•     the nature and scope of assurance provided for this particular report 11, 227, 304, 330, 
351

External Assurances, Independent 
Auditor's Report To the Shareholders of 
IDLC Finance Limited, IDLC Securities 
Limited, IDLC Investments Limited, IDLC 
Asset Management Limited

•     any qualifications arising from the assurance, and the nature of the 
relationship between the organization and the assurance providers 

None



Glossary
Terms

Terms Meaning

Accrual Basis Recognizing the effects of transactions and events when they occur, without waiting for 
receipt or payment of cash or cash equivalent.

Amortization Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset 
over its useful life.

Cash Basis Recognizing the effects of transactions and events when receipt or payment of cash or cash 
equivalent occurs.

Cash Equivalents Short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk in change in value.

Consolidated Financial Statements Financial Statements of a Group presented as those of a single Company.

Depreciation Depreciation is the allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its estimated useful 
life. Depreciation for the accounting period is charged to net profit or loss for the period either 
directly or indirectly.

Executions Advances granted to clients under leasing, hire purchase, installment sales and loan facilities.

Fair Value Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

Finance Lease A lease that transfers substantially all the risk and rewards incident to ownership of the asset to 
the lessee. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.

Gross Dividend The proportion of profit distributed to shareholders inclusive of tax withheld.

Gross Portfolio Total rental receivable of the advances granted to clients under leasing, hire purchase, 
installment sales and loan facilities.

Intangible Asset An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance held for 
use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative 
purposes. 

Interest Cost The sum of monies accrued and payable to the sources of borrowed working capital.

Interest in Suspense Interest income of non-performing portfolio; these interests are accrued but not considered 
as part of income.

Investment Property Investment property is property (land or a building - or part of a building - or both) held (by 
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or 
both, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes; or sale in the ordinary course of business. 

Lease A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or 
series of payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

Non-controlling interest (Minority 
Interest) 

Part of the net results of operations and of net assets of a subsidiary attributable to interests 
who are not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent.

Net Portfolio Total rental receivable excluding interest of the advances granted to clients under leasing, hire 
purchase, installment sales and loan facilities.

Non-Performing Portfolio Facilities granted to clients which are in default for more than the period recommended by 
Bangladesh Bank.

Paid up Capital All amounts received by the Company or due and payable to the Company (a) in respect of the 
issue of shares (b) in respect of calls on shares.

Provision Amounts set aside against possible losses on net receivable of facilities granted to clients, as a 
result of them becoming partly or wholly uncollectible.

Related Parties Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operating decisions.

Related Party Transactions A transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price 
is charged.
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Terms Meaning

Segmental Analysis Analysis of information by segments of an enterprise, specifically the different industries and 
the different geographical areas in which it operates.

Shareholders’ Funds (Equity) Total of issued and fully paid ordinary share capital and reserves.

Subsidiary Company Subsidiary is a company that is controlled (power to govern the financial and operating policies 
of an enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities) by another Company known as the 
parent.

Value Addition Value of wealth created by providing leasing and other related services considering the cost 
of providing such services.

Ratios

Ratio Method of computation Indication

Cost to Income Ratio Operating expenses excluding provision for 
bad and doubtful debts as a percentage of total 
operating income, net of interest cost.

Efficiency of cost management in generating 
income.

Debt to Equity

(Gearing) Ratio 

Total debts divided by equity. The extent to which debt contributes to fund 
total assets, compared to the contribution 
from equity.

Dividend Cover Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
divided by gross dividends of ordinary shares. 

Number of times dividend is covered by 
current year’s distributable profits.

Dividend Per Share (DPS) Value of the dividend proposed and paid out to 
ordinary shareholders divided by the number of 
ordinary shares in issue. 

Share of current year’s dividend distributable 
to an ordinary share in issue.

Earnings Per Share (EPS) Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
divided by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

Share of current year’s earnings attributable 
to an ordinary share in issue.

Interest Cover Earnings before interest and tax divided by 
interest charges. 

Ability to cover or service interest charges of 
the debt holders.

Market Capitalization No. of ordinary shares in issue multiplied by 
market value of a share. 

Total market value of all ordinary shares in 
issue.

Net Asset Value per Ordinary Share Ordinary shareholders’ funds divided by the 
number of ordinary shares in issue.  

Book value of ordinary shares.

Non-Performing

Facilities Ratio 

Total gross non-performing portfolio divided by 
total gross portfolio. 

Percentage of total gross non-performing 
portfolio against the total gross portfolio.

Price Earning Ratio

(PER Ratio) 

Market price of a share divided by Earnings Per 
Share (EPS). 

Number of years that would be taken to 
recoup shareholders’ capital outlay in the 
form of earnings.

Return on Assets (ROA) Net profits expressed as a percentage of average 
total assets. 

Overall effectiveness in generating profits 
with available assets; earning power of 
invested total capital.

Return on Equity (ROE) Net profit, less preference share dividends if any, 
expressed as a percentage of average ordinary 
shareholders’ funds. 

Earning power on shareholders’ book value of 
investment (equity).



IDLC’s Presence

IDLC Finance Limited

CORPORATE HEAD OFFICE
Bay’s Galleria (1st Floor), 57 Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212  
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 883 4377, 883 5887
E-mail: contactcenter@idlc.com

DILKUSHA BRANCH
D R Tower (5th Floor) 65/2/2 Bir Pratik Gazi Golam Dastagir Road, 
Purana Paltan, Dhaka 1000 
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 956 3620
E-mail: idlcdlk@idlc.com

GULSHAN BRANCH
Bay’s Galleria (4th Floor), 57 Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 883 4148
E-mail: idlcgln@idlc.com

UTTARA BRANCH
Paradise Tower (5th Floor), Plot No. 11, Sector No. 3
Uttara Model Town, Dhaka 1230
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 895 9190
E-mail:  idlcuttara@idlc.com

DHANMONDI BRANCH
House No. 39/A (3rd Floor), Road No. 14/A,  
Dhanmondi, Dhaka 1209  
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 5812 3161 Ext - 122
E-mail: idlcdhn@idlc.com 

MIRPUR BRANCH
Khan plaza (1st Floor), Plot No. 6, Main Road No. 1, Mirpur 10, 
Dhaka 1216
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcmirpur@idlc.com

ELEPHANT ROAD BRANCH
Pearsons Tower (1st Floor), 299 Elephant Road, Dhaka 1205
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcelephantroad@idlc.com

IMAMGANJ BRANCH
57/58 Mitford Road (3rd Floor), Chowk Bazar, Dhaka 1100
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcimg@idlc.com

KERANIGANJ BRANCH
A K Tower (1st Floor)
Nagar Mahal Road, Nadidhara Ispahani
East Aganagar, South Keraniganj, Dhaka 1310
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlckeranigonj@idlc.com

NARAYANGANJ BRANCH
Sattar Tower (4th Floor)
50 S. M. Maleh Road, Tanbazar, Narayanganj 1400
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 764 8217
E-mail:  idlcngonj@idlc.com

GAZIPUR BRANCH
Rahmat Tower (2nd Floor), Holding No. 1034, Outpara
Joydebpur, Gazipur 1700
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (2) 926 3569
E-mail: idlcgaz@idlc.com

TONGI BRANCH
Banesa Complex (Ground Floor), 26 Anarkoli Road, Tongi, 
Gazipur 1710
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlctongi@idlc.com

SAVAR BRANCH
Savar New Market (3rd Floor)
Holding No. 3, Savar Pouroshova, Savar, Dhaka 1340
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcsavar@idlc.com

NARSINGDI BRANCH
T Hussain Tower, Holding No. 382
Kalibari road, Narsingdi Bazar, Narsingdi 1600
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: + 880 (2) 945 2078
E-mail: idlcnrsd@idlc.com

BHULTA BRANCH
Hazi A Aziz Super Market (2nd Floor)
Mouza: Golakandail, P.O: Bhulta, P.S.: Rupganj, District: 
Narayanganj 1460
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcbhulta@idlc.com

FARIDPUR BRANCH
Hafeez Building (2nd Floor), 94 Mujib Shorok, Faridpur 7800                                                                                                
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcfaridpur@idlc.com                                                                                       

CHITTAGONG BRANCH
World Trade Center (5th Floor)
102-103 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chittagong 4100
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (31) 715 895
E-mail: idlcctg@idlc.com

COMILLA BRANCH
Artisan Nasir Center (3rd Floor)
437 Nazrul Avenue, Kandirpar, Comilla 3500
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (81) 64907-8 (Ext-110), 72 881 (Ext-110)
E-mail:  idlccomilla@idlc.com
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NANDANKANON BRANCH
A. K. Mansion (1st Floor)
17 J.C. Guha Road, Nandankanon, Chittagong 4100
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (31) 612 762

CHOWMUHANI BRANCH
N S S Bhaban (2nd Floor), Feni Road, Chowmuhani, Noakhali 3821                                                                                                                          
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcchowmuhani@idlc.com

KUSHTIA BRANCH
Momtaz Tower (2nd Floor), 5/1 Jaliram Agarwala Lane, Roxy Goly, 
Kustia 7000
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlckushtia@idlc.com

JESSORE BRANCH
Rashid Center (2nd Floor), 7/A  R. N. Road, Jessore 7400
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (421) 608 96
E-mail: idlcjessore@idlc.com

KHULNA BRANCH
Syed Ali Hossain Tower (Ground Floor), 181 Khan A Sobur Road, 
Khulna 9100
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlckhulna@idlc.com

BARISAL BRANCH
L L Tower (2nd Floor), Holding No. 119, Sadar Road, Barisal 8200
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcbarisal@idlc.com

RANGPUR BRANCH
Paper Palace Tower (Ground Floor)
House No. 306, Road No. 1, Central Road, Rangpur 5400
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcrangpur@idlc.com

BOGRA BRANCH
Sairul Complex (1st Floor), Sherpur Road, Sutrapur, Bogra 5800
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (51) 698 39
E-mail: idlcbog@idlc.com

RAJSHAHI BRANCH
Sahidullah Tower – 1 (2nd Floor)
32/A Ranibazar, Ghoramara, Boalia, Rajshahi 6100
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcrajshahi@idlc.com

NATORE BRANCH
Lily plaza (2nd Floor), Holding No. 838. Kanaikhali, Natore 6400
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcnatore@idlc.com

MYMENSINGH BRANCH
Swapnaneer Tower (1st Floor), 27 C K Ghosh Road, Mymensingh 
2200
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlcmymensingh@idlc.com

SYLHET BRANCH
Casablanca (2nd Floor), 982 Dargah Gate, Sylhet 3100
Telephone: 16409
Facsimile: +880 (821) 728 244
E-mail: idlcsyl@idlc.com

HABIGANJ BRANCH
Shankar City (1st Floor), Ram Krishna Mission Road, Ghatia Bazar, 
Habiganj 3300
Telephone: 16409
E-mail: idlchabiganj@idlc.com

IDLC Securities Limited

HEAD OFFICE
D R Tower (4th Floor), 65/2/2 Bir Protik Gazi Golam Dastagir Road
Purana Paltan, Dhaka 1000
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (2) 9574366
Email: securities@idlc.com

GULSHAN BRANCH
South Avenue Tower (5th Floor) 
Unit No. 502, House No. 50, Road No. 3, 7 Gulshan Avenue, 
Dhaka 1212
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (2) 9883898 
Email: idlcslgulshan@idlc.com

CHITTAGONG BRANCH
Ayub Trade Centre (6th Floor), 1269/B Sk. Mujib Road, 
Agrabad Commercial Area, Chittagong 4100 
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (31) 251 4059 
Email: idlcslctg@idlc.com

DHANMONDI BRANCH
Concord Royal Court (2nd Floor), House No: 275/G (Old) 40 
(New), 
Road: 27 (Old) 16 (New), Dhanmondi R/A, Dhaka 1209 
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +88-02-9102622 
Email: idlcsldhn@idlc.com



DOHS MOHAKHALI BRANCH
House No. 109, Park Road, Block A, 
New DOHS Mohakhali, Dhaka 1206 
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (2) 871 4510 
Email: idlcsldohs@idlc.com

GAZIPUR BRANCH
Rahmat Tower (2nd Floor), Holding No. 1034, 
Mouza: Outpara, Joydebpur, Gazipur 1700 
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +88-02-9263539 
Email: idlcslgazipur@idlc.com

KHATUNGONJ BRANCH
Golsen Park, M.H No. 3/A, Ramjoy Mohajan Lane, 
Khatungonj, P.S. Kotwali, Chittagong 4100 
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (31) 2866494
Email: idlcslkg@idlc.com

NARAYANGONJ BRANCH
Sattar Tower (Ground floor), Municipal Holding No. 50
S.M. Maleh Road, Tanbazar, P.S - Narayanganj, Narayanganj 1400. 
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +88-02-7632896 
Email: idlcslng@idlc.com

SYLHET BRANCH
R N Tower (4th Floor), Chowhatta, Sylhet
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (821) 728 244 
Email: idlcslsylhet@idlc.com

UTTARA BRANCH
Monsur Complex (4th Floor), Plot # 59/A, Road # 7, 
Sector # 4, Uttara Model Town, Dhaka 1230. 
Telephone: 16409
Email: idlcsluttara@idlc.com

IDLC Investments Limited

HEAD OFFICE 
D R Tower (4th Floor), 65/2/2 Bir Protik Gazi Golam Dastagir Road
Purana Paltan, Dhaka 1000
Telephone: 16409
Fax: +880 (2) 957 1171
Email: merbank@idlc.com

IDLC Asset Management Limited

HEAD OFFICE 
South Avenue Tower (5th Floor) 
Unit No. 502, House No. 50, Road No. 3, 7 Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka 1212
Telephone: 16409 
Fax: +880 (2) 989 6142 
Email: idlcaml@idlc.com
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PROXY FORM
I/We ...................................................................................................of...............................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................ being a member of IDLC Finance Limited and a holder of .................

.......................................... shares hereby appoint Mr./ Ms. ....................................................................................................................................

of.................................................................................................................................................................. as my/ our proxy to vote for me/us 

and on my/our behalf at the 33rd Annual General Meeting of  the Company to be held on March 29, 2018 (Thursday) and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this                                                          day of March 2018

Signature 

Revenue

Stamp of

BDT 20

Signature 

Name : Name :

(Proxy) (Member)

Folio/BO ID No

NOTE : 

a)	 This form of proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at least 72 hours before the meeting at the Company’s registered office. Proxy is invalid if not 
signed and stamped as explained above.

b) 	 Signature of the shareholders should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company and Depository Register. 

ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my attendance at the 33rd Annual General Meeting of IDLC Finance Limited  as a holder of.............................................................

........................................................................................................................................................................................... shares of the Company.  

Signature 

Name :

(Member/ Proxy) 

Folio/BO ID No.

NOTE : 

Signature of the shareholders should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company and Depository Register.

IDLC FINANCE LIMITED
Bay’s Galleria (1st Floor)
57 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212
Tel: +88 02 8834990, Fax : 8834377
E-mail : contactcenter@idlc.com

IDLC FINANCE LIMITED
Bay’s Galleria (1st Floor)
57 Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212
Tel: +88 02 8834990, Fax : 8834377
E-mail : contactcenter@idlc.com

33rd Annual General Meeting

33rd Annual General Meeting




